If you have issues viewing or accessing this file, please contact us at NCJRS.gov.





# SUMMARY STATISTICS

Street Street

# CIVIL COMMITMENT PROGRAM FOR NARCOTIC ADDICTS 1974 AND 1975

CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER PROGRAM

MAY 30 1988

ACQUISITIONS

HEALTH AND WELFARE AGENCY

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SECTION SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA



### STATE OF CALIFORNIA

# HEALTH AND WELFARE AGENCY MARIO G. OBLEDO Secretary

# DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

J. J. ENOMOTO Director

# CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER PROGRAM ROLAND W. WOOD Superintendent

## NARCOTIC ADDICT EVALUATION AUTHORITY

Edward Walker	 		Chairman
John H. Stevens			
Captain Thorvald T. Brown			
Edwin A. Kujawa			

as of December 31, 1975

# PREFACE

Summary Statistics, Civil Commitment Program for Narcotic Addicts presents characteristics and movement statistics for men and women civilly committed to the California Rehabilitation Center program.

The 1974 and 1975 populations are addressed primarily in this volume which also presents selected data from previous years.

The organization of summary statistics is based on the order of movements of persons entering the civil commitment program. Data concerning persons entering or exiting a particular stage in the program are based on the duration of a calendar year. Characteristic statistics of the populations are as of December 31 in the respective calendar year.

> This report has been approved by JAMES W. L. PARK Assistant Deputy Director Policy and Planning Division

> > and

*prepared by* MARIE VIDA RYAN Chief, Management Information Section

WILLIAM C. PANNELL Operations Research Specialist DONA GOOD Staff Services Analyst



# CONTENTS

Page

Preface	v
Contents	vii
Summary	1
Institution Population and Movement	2
Civil Narcotic Addicts Admitted to California Rehabilitation Center	5
Characteristics of Residents in California Rehabilitation Center Institution Program	29
Civil Narcotic Addicts Released From the Institution	42
Outpatient Population	50
Community Correctional Centers	68
List of Tables	69
List of Charts	
Appendix	75

												4 .				_
										1						- 1
1																
1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -																· .
2								•								
											, .					
																1.1
																.1
																· 1
	·															
																·
																1
		i														
1. A.																
	. 1. st															·
1.1																
	(															
						1	e -			-						
														ана на 19		
											1					
- 																
1 										1.5.5						
	· · ·															
												1 - A				
	, di															
			1. J.				1.							· ·		
	· ·		· · ·							·	1					
		1														
1997 - 19								·								
													1.1		4. A.	
															100	1
1. N.			, sa a													
						х. Х.				e i						
3.000														-		
			•											11		
	· · · ·															
									•	: 						
														11 (d.) 1		
										1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1						
1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -			i arti													
Ar										l ser p						-
					8 - E						1.111					

# CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER PROGRAM 1974-75

# SUMMARY

### INSTITUTION POPULATION AND MOVEMENT

Persons in the California Rehabilitation Center institution program at the close of 1975 numbered 2,138. This total represented a ratio of 10.1 persons per 100,000 State population which was the highest ratio at the close of any year since 1970. The population included 1,863 men and 275 women.

# CIVIL NARCOTIC ADDICTS ADMITTED TO CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER

During 1975, 1,524 men and 298 women civil narcotic addicts were newly admitted from court to the California Rehabilitation Center. Of the men, 93.4 percent had been charged with a felony, 6.5 percent with a misdemeanor offense, and 0.1 percent with no criminal offense. The corresponding percentages for women were: felony, 79.5; misdemeanor, 19.8; and no criminal charge, 0.7.

Of the 1,523 men charged with a criminal offense who were admitted to the institution program in 1975, 38.5 percent had been convicted of controlled substance or marijuana offenses. Almost one-half (49.4 percent) of the women with criminal charges pending had been convicted of controlled substance or marijuana offenses.

### CHARACTERISTICS OF RESIDENTS IN

### CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER INSTITUTION PROGRAM

The population in institutions at the end of 1975 was comprised of 1,863 men and 275 women. Characteristics of persons in the institution program differ from those of persons newly admitted from court. Of the men with criminal charges pending, 42.1 percent had been convicted of controlled substance or marijuana offenses and 46.8 percent of crimes against property. The corresponding percentages for women were 51.3 and 43.6.

The median age of male residents was 27.1 years in 1975. Only 3.9 percent of the men were under 21 years of age at the end of that year. The median age of women was 26.0 years, while 42.9 percent were under 25 years of age at the close of 1975.

#### CIVIL NARCOTIC ADDICTS RELEASED FROM THE INSTITUTION

Of the 3,901 male civil narcotic addicts released from the California Rehabilitation Center institution program during 1975, a total of 3,497 were discharged, released to outpatient supervision, or died. Almost all (90.2 percent) of these men were released to outpatient status.

Men experiencing first release to outpatient status during the years 1972 through 1975 spent a median seven months in residence at the

California Rehabilitation Center. Women first released to outpatient status during 1975 spent a median seven months in the institution before release.

#### OUTPATIENT POPULATION

The civil narcotic outpatient population was comprised of 4,472 men and 829 women at the end of 1975. Of the December 31, 1975 outpatient population, 93.0 percent of the men and 81.2 percent of the women had been charged with felony offenses. Of the male outpatients, 41.3 percent had been convicted of opiate derivative offenses and 39.6 percent of crimes against property. The corresponding figures for women were 47.0 percent and 38.2 percent. At the end of 1975, nearly all outpatients were supervised in California.

### COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTERS

The Department of Corrections operated Rupert Crittenden Center and Vinewood Center during 1974 and 1975, closed Parkway Center during 1974, and opened Sacramento Valley Center during 1975.

# INSTITUTION POPULATION AND MOVEMENT

The population in the California Rehabilitation Center institution program increased 5.3 percent from December 31, 1974 to the close of 1975. Persons in the program numbered 2,138 on December 31, 1975. This total represents a ratio of 10.1 persons per 100,000 State population which was the highest ratio at the close of any year since 1970. The 2,138 civil addicts in the institution program on December 31, 1975 included 1,863 men and 275 women, an increase of 101 men and 7 women during the year.

During 1975, a total of 4,002 men were received into the California Rehabilitation Center institution program, while 3,901 men were released. The majority (2,102) of men received were outpatients returned, but a substantial number of the men (1,524) were newly committed from court. Of the 3,901 men released from the institution program, 3,155, or 80.9 percent, were placed under outpatient supervision. Men discharged by court order numbered 324. Only 16 men were released by expiration of commitment.

The number of women received into the California Rehabilitation Center institution program during 1975 was 769, of whom 298 were newly committed and 328 had been returned from outpatient supervision. Women released from the institution numbered 762, including 566 placed on outpatient status and 46 discharged by order of the court.

Of the outpatients returned to the institution program during 1975, approximately 90 percent of both the men and the women were returned without a new narcotic commitment. Although the total number of movements, received and released, were less for the male civil addicts during 1975 than during 1974, the population increased by 101 men during the year. By contrast, the total number of women, received and released, was greater during 1975 than during 1974, the population was only seven more on December 31, 1975 than at the end of 1974.

### TABLE 1 INSTITUTION POPULATION CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER PROGRAM December 31, 1961 through 1975

	Institution	Rate of institution population	Annual change in institution population				
December 31	population	per 100,000 State population*	Number	Percent			
1961 1962 1963 1964	235 1,285 1,305 1,909	† 7,5 7,4 10,5	† 20 604	† 1,6 46,3			
1965 1966 1967 1968 1968	1,827 2,184 2,353 2,856 3,132	9.7 11.4 12.0 14,4 15.8		$-4.3 \\19.5 \\7.7 \\21.4 \\9.7$			
1970 1971 1972 1973 1974	2,634 1,903 2,015 1,897 2,030	13.3 9.4 9.8 9.1 9.8	$ \begin{array}{r} -498 \\ -731 \\ 112 \\ -118 \\ 133 \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} -15.9 \\ -27.8 \\ 5.9 \\ -5.9 \\ 7.0 \\ \end{array} $			
1975	2,138	10.1	108	5.3			

 Estimates of State population from State Department of Finance, Financial and Population Research Section publication.
 f Opened September 15, 1961.

TABLE 2

INSTITUTION POPULATION AND MOVEMENT CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER PROGRAM 1974 and 1975

Type of movement	М	en	Women			
	1074	1975	1974	1975		
Population, January 1	1,674	1,762	223	268		
Total received	4,128	4,002	627	769		
New commitments from court Felony charge Misdemeanor charge No crimina; charge	1,776 1,655 116 5	1,524 1,423 100 1	300 246 54	298 237 59 2		
Outpatients returned With new narcotic commitment Without new narcotic commitment	1,930 227 1,703	2,102 216 1,886	276 19 257	328 32 296		
Escapees returned Returned from court Returned from State hospitals All other	. 385	8 317 51	2 38 11	126 17		
Total released		3,901	582	762		
To outpatient status First release Re-release	2,948 1,295 1,653	3,155 1,469 1,686	503 266 237	566 278 288		
Expiration of commitment	7	16		1		
Court order discharge	580	324	18	46		
Died Escaped To court To State hospital All other	9 433 63	2 10 351 43		1 130 18		
Population, December 31	1,782	1,863	268	275		
Population change	88	101	45	7		

i.r

# CIVIL NARCOTIC ADDICTS ADMITTED TO CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER

Of the 1,524 male civil narcotic addicts newly admitted from court to the California Rehabilitation Center during 1975, 93.4 percent had been charged with a felony, 6.5 percent with a misdemeanor offense, and 0.1 percent had no criminal charges pending. For the 298 women newly admitted from court, the corresponding percentages were: felony, 79.5 percent; misdemeanor, 19.8 percent; and no criminal charge, 0.7 percent. The percentage of male civil addicts newly admitted from court with felony charges pending has been slowly increasing, while the corresponding percentage of women has been decreasing since 1973. In 1975 the admission rate was 7.2 men and 1.4 women per 100,000 State population.

Of the 1,523 men charged with a criminal offense who were admitted to the institution program in 1975, 38.5 percent had been convicted of a controlled substance or marijuana offense. Some of the other principal offenses for which male addicts had been convicted include burglary (30.9 percent), theft except auto (9.9 percent), and robbery (8.6 percent).

Almost one-half (49.4 percent) of the 296 women received in 1975 with criminal charges pending had been convicted of controlled substance or marijuana offenses. Other offenses for which more than 10 percent of the women had been convicted were forgery and checks, 18.9 percent; theft except auto, 13.2 percent; and burglary, 12.5 percent.

Although the majority of persons newly received in the addict program during 1975 were sent from Los Angeles County, the commitment rate of that county was below the rate for the total State. The commitment rate with respect to county population was the highest from San Francisco County, with a rate of 25.91 persons per 100,000 county population. Fresno County had the second highest commitment rate.

Less than half (44.7 percent) of the male civil addicts received during 1975 were white, while 30.8 percent were white, Mexican descent, and 23.0 percent were black. Similarly, the ethnic classification of men charged with a felony was: 44.4 percent white; 30.6 percent white, Mexican descent; and 23.7 percent black. The percentage distribution for civilly committed men charged with a misdemeanor was slightly different, however: 49.0 percent white; 35.0 percent white, Mexican descent; and 12.0 percent black.

For civilly committed women addicts, the ethnic classifications were comprised of 54.4 percent white; 23.1 percent black; and 18.8 percent white, Mexican descent, in 1975. Compared with 1974, the percentage of whites increased while the percentages of whites, Mexican descent, and blacks decreased.

5

-

The median age of men admitted to the California Rehabilitation Center program during 1975 was 25.7 years. The median age has been increasing for the past four years and has again reached the 1969 level. During 1965–1968, the median age was 26 years or higher. The percentage of men under 25 years of age at admission was 45.4 percent. This percentage is lower than any corresponding percentage since 1968. The women's median age also increased, from 24.1 years in 1974 to 24.8 years in 1975. Exactly 52.0 percent of all women received were under 25 years of age.

The age composition of men received during 1975 with misdemeanor charges pending is different from that of men charged with felonies. During 1975, 19.0 percent of men with misdemeanor charges pending were under 21 years of age at time of admission, while only 7.1 percent of the men with felony charges pending were in that age group. The median age at admission of women convicted of misdemeanor charges also was less than that of women charged with a felony, 24.3 years as compared with 24.9 years. Of the women received during 1975 with misdemeanor charges, 15.3 percent were under 21 years of age. This is a noticeably greater percentage than the 11.8 percent of those received with felony charges who were under 21 years of age at time of admission.

When persons are admitted to the California Rehabilitation Center program, a series of tests are administered to measure their educational achievement. The median grade achievement score of men admitted during 1975 was 8.1, while the median grade score for the women was 8.3. Only three persons admitted during 1975 scored below the third grade level while 9.0 percent of the men and 6.2 percent of the women scored twelfth grade or over. Nine out of every ten persons admitted to the rehabilitation program during 1975 had been residents of California ten years or more.

While the median age at admission for men in 1975 was 25.7 years, the median age at time of first known arrest was 17.5 years. Women civil addicts also showed considerable difference between median age at admission, 24.8 years, and the age at time of first known arrest, a median of 18.7 years.

The percentages of men and women admitted during 1975 who had not served a prior criminal commitment were 17.9 and 34.2, respectively. Although only 11.1 percent of the men had served a prior prison term, 71.0 percent had experienced one or more prior jail and/or juvenile commitments. Only 2.7 percent of the women received during 1975 had served a prior prison sentence, while 63.1 percent had served a prior jail or juvenile commitment.

### TABLE 3

7

### NUMBER ADMITTED EACH YEAR BY TYPE OF CHARGE

PERCENTAGE DISTRIBUTION AND COMMITMENT RATE

### 1965 through 1975

			М	en			Wo	men	
Year	Grand total		T,	ype of char	ge		T	ype of char	ge
		Total	Felony	Misde- meanor	None	Total	Felony	Misde- meanor	None
	анна 1. <u>а</u>	1997 - 1997 1997 - 1997 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1		Number					
1965 1966 1967 1968 1969	1,056 1,231 1,645 1,783 2,245	913 1,085 1,428 1,555 1,981	715 768 986 1,129 1,603	143 163 161 187 163	55 154 281 239 215	$143 \\ 146 \\ 217 \\ 228 \\ 264$	101 86 136 137 198	34 29 47 54 37	8 31 34 37 29
1970 1971 1972 1972 1974	2,225 2,455 2,125 2,160 2,076	1,974 2,186 1,879 1,832 1,776	1,621 1,980 1,723 1,704 1,655	154 130 137 115 116	199 76 12 13 5	251 269 253 328 300	186 218 207 272 248	43 40 41 52 54	22 11 5 4
1975	1,822	1,524	1,423	100	1	298	237	59	2
			Pe	rcentag	e				n Al Charles
1965 1966 1967 1967 1908 1909		100.0	78.3 70 8 69.0 72.6 80.9	$15.7 \\ 15.0 \\ 11.3 \\ 12.0 \\ 8.2$	6.0 14 2 19 7 15 4 10.9	100.0 100 0 100 0 100 0 100 0 100.0	70.6 58.9 62.7 60.1 75.0	23.8 19.9 21.6 23.7 14.0	5.6 21.2 15.7 16.2 11.0
1970 1971 1972 1973 1974		100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0	82.1 90 8 93.0 93.0 93.2	7.8 5.9 7.3 6.3 6.5	10.1 3.5 0.7 0.7 0.3	100 0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0	74.1 81.0 81.8 82.9 82.0	$ \begin{array}{r} 17.1 \\ 14.9 \\ 16.2 \\ 15.9 \\ 18.0 \\ \end{array} $	8.8 4.1 2.0 1.2
1975		100.0	93.4	6.5	0.1	100.0	79.5	19.8	0.7
		Rate p	er 100,0	00 State	popula	ition *			
1965 1966 1967 1968 1968	5.64 6.43 8.45 9.12 11.31	4.88 5.67 7.33 7.95 9.98	$3.82 \\ 4.01 \\ 5.06 \\ 5.77 \\ 8.08$	0.76 0.85 0.83 0.96 0.82	$\begin{array}{c} 0.30 \\ 0.81 \\ 1.44 \\ 1.22 \\ 1.08 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.76 \\ 0.76 \\ 1.12 \\ 1.17 \\ 1.33 \end{array}$	0.54 0.45 0.70 0.70 1.00	0.18 0.15 0.24 0.28 0.19	0.04 0.16 0.18 0.19 0.14
1970 1971 1972 1973 1974	11 22 12 11 10.35 10.41 9.92	9 96 10.78 9.12 8.83 8,43	8.18 9.77 8.39 8.22 7.91	0.78 0.64 0.67 0.55 0.55	$\begin{array}{c} 1.00 \\ 0.37 \\ 0.06 \\ 0.06 \\ 0.02 \end{array}$	$1.26 \\ 1.33 \\ 1.23 \\ 1.58 \\ 1.44$	0.94 1.08 1.01 1.31 1.18	$\begin{array}{c} 0.21 \\ 0.20 \\ 0.20 \\ 0.25 \\ 0.26 \end{array}$	0.11 0.05 0.02 0.02
1975	8.63	7.22	6.74	0.47	0.01	1.41	1.12	0,28	0.01

• Estimates of State population from State Department of Finance, Financial and Population Research Section publication.

### TABLE 4A-1974

# OFFENSE BY TYPE OF CHARGE

1974

	To	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemea	nor charge
Offense	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Total	1,776					
No criminal charge	5					
Total charged	1,771	100.0	1,655	100.0	116	100.0
Homicide Voluntary manslaughter Murder 2nd	2 1 1	0.1	2 1 1	0.1		
Robbery Robbery 1st Robbery 2nd Other	153 63 78 12	$8.6 \\ 3.5 \\ 4.4 \\ 0.7$	151 63 78 10	9.1 3.8 4.7 0.6	2  -2	1.8
Assault Assault with a deadly weapon Assault, battery on peace officer Other	23 2	$1.5 \\ 1.3 \\ 0.1 \\ 0.1$	$25 \\ 22 \\ 2 \\ 1 \\ 1$	1.5 1.3 0.1 0.1		0.9 0.9
Burglary_st Burglary 1st Burglary 2nd Other	442 44 390 8	25.0 2.5 22.0 0.5	$427 \\ 44 \\ 375 \\ 8$	$25.8 \\ 2.7 \\ 22.6 \\ 0.5$	15 15 	12.9 12.9
Theft except auto Grand theft Potty theft with prior Attempted grand theft Theft of credit card Porgery of credit card Receiving stolen property		$ \begin{array}{c} 11.2\\ 4.0\\ 1.5\\ 0.1\\ 0.1\\ 0.9\\ 4.6\\ \end{array} $	$174 \\ 63 \\ 19 \\ 2 \\ 1 \\ 16 \\ 73$	10.5 3.8 1.1 0.1 0.1 1.0 4.4	24 8 7 	20.6 6.9 6.0  7.7
Auto theft		1,1	17	1.0	. 2	1.8
Forgery and checks	129	7.3	118	7.2	11	9.5
Sex						
Controlled Substances Schedules I & II (opiate) Possession Sale Forgery or fraud of narcotic prescription Sell substance in lieu of narcotics Maintain place for narcotics Driving under influence of narcotics	270 97 224 1 7	$\begin{array}{c} 34.6\\ 15.7\\ 5.4\\ 12.7\\ 0.1\\ 0.4\\ 0.1\\ 0.2\\ \end{array}$	610 279 97 224 1 7 1 1	36.9 16.8 5.8 13.6 0.1 0.4 0.1 0.1	3      3	2.5    2.5
Controlled Substances Schedules III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Possession of dangerous drugs Possession for sale Sale Forgery of drug prescription	30 8 19 4	3.4 1.7 0.4 1.0 0.3	58 27 8 19 4	$\begin{array}{c} 3.5 \\ 1.6 \\ 0.5 \\ 1.1 \\ 0.3 \end{array}$	33	2.5
Marijuano Possession Possession for salo Sale	50 31 8 17	3.2 1,8 0.5 0.0	50 25 8 17	$\begin{array}{c} 3.0 \\ 1.5 \\ 0.5 \\ 1.0 \end{array}$	6 6 	5.2 5.2 
Other felony offenses	25	1.4	23	1.4	2	1.8
Misdemeanor charges	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2.6			47	40.5
Misdomeanor narcotic charges Narcotic addiction Possession of hypodermic kit Other narcotic or dru, misdemeanor	13	2.2 0.9 0.7 0.6			41 17 13 11	35.3 14.6 11.2 9.5
Other	. 6	0,4			6	5.2

# TABLE 4A-1975 OFFENSE BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN ADMITTED 1975

	То	ital	Felony	charge	Misdemca	nor charge
Offense	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Total	1,524					
No criminal charge	1			2 -	an ta a	
Total charged	1,523	100.0	1,423	100.0	100	100.0
Homicide Manslaughter by vehicle	2 2	0.1 0.1	22	0,1 0.1		
Robbery Robbery ist Robbery 2nd Other	131 43 80 8	8.6 2.8 5,2 0.6	131 43 80 8	9.2 3.0 5.6 0.6		
Assault with a deadly weapon Assault with a deadly weapon Assault, battery on peace officer Inflict traum, injury on wife or child	17 15 1 1	$1.2 \\ 1.0 \\ 0.1 \\ 0.1$	14 13 -1	1.0 0.9 0.1	3 2 1	3.0 2.0 1.0
Burglary Burglary 1st Burglary 2nd Othor	470 49 414 7	30.9 3.2 27.2 0.5	446 49 390 7	31.3 3.4 27.4 0.5	24 24 	24.0 24.0
Theft except au to Grand theft Petty theft with prior Attempted grand theft Forgery of credit card Receiving stolen property	51 16 3	9.9 3.3 1.0 0.2 0.7 4.7	132 46 11 3 8 64	9.3 3.2 0.8 0.2 0.6 4.5	19 5 5 -2 7	19.0 5.0 5.0 2.0 7.0
Auto theft	24	1.6	21	1.5	3	3.0
Forgery and checks	107	7.0	95	6.7	12	12.0
Sex	3	0.2	2	0.1	1	1.0
Controlled Substances Schedules I & II (opiate). Possession	234 86 174 5 2	33.0 15.4 5.7 11.4 0.3 0.1 0.1	501 234 86 174 5 1 1	35.2 16.4 6.0 12.2 0.4 0.1 0.1	1	1.0
Controlled Substances Schedules III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Possession of dangerous drugs Possession for sale Sale Forgery of drug prescription	1 9	2.0 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.3	30 12 6 9 3	$2.1 \\ 0.9 \\ 0.4 \\ 0.6 \\ 0.2$		1.0  1.0
Marijuana Possession or planting Possession for sale Sale	81 17 7 7	$2.0 \\ 1.2 \\ 0.4 \\ 0.4$	27 13 7 7	1.9 0.9 0.5 0.5	4 4 	4.0 4.0 
Other felony offenses	26	1.7	22	1.6	4.	4.0
Misdemeanor charges	28	1.8			28	28.0
Misdemeanor narcotic charges Narcotic addiction Possession of hypodermic kit Other narcotic or drug misdemeanor	23 9 4 10	1.5 0.6 0.3 0.6			23 9 4 10	$23.0 \\ 9.0 \\ 4.0 \\ 10.0$
Other	5	0.3			5	5.0

# TABLE 48-1974 OFFENSE BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN ADMITTED

	То	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemeanor charge		
Offense	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	
Total	300		1				
No criminal charge							
Total charged	300	100.0	246	100.0	54	100.0	
Manslaughter	1	0.3	1	0.4	·,		
Robbery Robbery 1st Robbery 2nd	7	$\begin{array}{c} 3.7\\ 1.4\\ 2.3\end{array}$	11 4 7	$\begin{array}{r} 4.5\\ 1.6\\ 2.9\end{array}$	 		
Assault	2	0.6	1	0.4	1	1.8	
Burglary	24	8.0	21	8.5	3	5.6	
Theft except au'o Grand theft Petty theft with prior Forgery of credit card Receiving stolen property Other	14 16 4 4	$13.0 \\ 4.6 \\ 5.3 \\ 1.4 \\ 1.4 \\ 0.3$	23 9 6 4 3	9.4 3.7 2.5 1.6 1.2 0.4	16 5 10 	29.6 9.3 18.5 1.8	
Auto theft		0.3	1	0.4			
Forgery and checks		24.4	62	25.2	11	20.3	
Controlled Substances Schedules I & II (opiate)_ Possession Sale Other	109 62	36.4 20.7 5.7 9.4 0.6	109 62 17 28 2	$\begin{array}{c} 44.3 \\ 25.2 \\ 6.9 \\ 11.4 \\ 0.8 \end{array}$			
Controlled Substances Schedules III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Possession. Forgery of drug prescription Sale	1 <b>1</b>	4.6 3.7 0.3 0.6	11 8 1 2	$4.5 \\ 3.3 \\ 0.4 \\ 0.8$	3 3  	5.6 5.6	
Marijuana Possession Sale	4	$\begin{array}{c} 1.7\\ 1.4\\ 0.3\end{array}$	5 4 1	$\begin{array}{c} 2.0\\ 1.6\\ 0.4\end{array}$	=	 	
Other felony offenses	1	0.3	1	0.4	· '		
Misdemeanor charges	20	6.7			20	37.1	
Misdemeanor narcotic charges Narcotic addiction Possession of hypodermic kit Other narcotic or drug misdemeanor	4	$3.8 \\ 1.4 \\ 1.4 \\ 1.0$		  	11 4 4 3	20.4 7.4 7.4 5.6	
Other	9	2.9			9	16.7	

# TABLE 48-1975 OFFENSE BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN ADMITTED

1975

	То	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemea	nor charge
Offense	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Total	298					
No criminal charge	2					1997 - 1997 -
Total charged	296	100.0	237	100.0	59	100.0
Robbery Robbery 1st Robbery 2nd Attempted robbery	1	$2.7 \\ 0.3 \\ 2.1 \\ 0.3$	8 1 6 1	$3.3 \\ 0.4 \\ 2.5 \\ 0.4$		
Assault	3	1.0	3	1.3		
Burglary	37	12.5	35	14.8	2	3.4
Theft except auto         Grand theft         Petty theft with prior         Attempted grand theft         Theft or fraudulent use of credit card         Forgery of credit card         Receiving stolen property	13 10 1	$13.2 \\ 4.4 \\ 3.4 \\ 0.3 \\ 0.3 \\ 0.7 \\ 4.1$	24 10 1 1 2 1	$   \begin{array}{r}     10.1 \\     4.2 \\     0.9 \\     0.4 \\     \overline{} \\     \phantom{0.7$	15 3 8 1 1 3	25.4 5.1 13.5 1.7 5.1
Forgery and checks	56	18.9	49	20.7	7	11.9
Controlled Substances Schedules I & II (opiate) Possession for sale	114 51 19 41 2 1	38.6 17.3 6.4 13.9 0.7 0.3	113 51 19 41 2	47.7 21.5 8.0 17.3 0.9		1.7  1.7
Controlled Substances Schedules III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Possession Possession for sale Sale Driving under influence of dangerous drugs	1	1.6 0.7 0.3 0.3 0.3	4 2 1 1	1.7 0.9 0.4 0.4 	1	1.7
Marijuana Possession	2 2	0.7 0.7	1	0.4 0.4	1	1.7 1.7
Misdemeanor charges	32	10.8			32	54.2
Misdemeanor narcotic charges Narcotic addiction Possesion of hypodermic kit Other narcotic or drug misdemeanor	1 5	8.5 1.7 3.7 3.1			25 5 11 9	42.3 8.5 18.6 15.2
Other	7	2.3			7	11.9



### TABLE 5

# COMMITMENT RATES BY GEOGRAPHIC AREAS MEN AND WOMEN ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

	1974				1975		
Geographic area	County population in thousands	admitted	Rate per 100,000 population	Geographic area	County population in thousands	Number admitted	Rate per 100,000 population

#### 10 Most Populous Counties in Rank Order

Total	20,933.0	2,076	9.92	Total	21,113.0	1,822	8.63
Los Angeles Orange San Diego Santa Clara Alameda	6,961.2 1,656.3 1,509.9 1,178.9 1,096.9	602 34 260 19 69	$\begin{array}{r} 8.64 \\ 2.05 \\ 17.22 \\ 1.61 \\ 6.29 \end{array}$	Los Angeles Orange San Diego Santa Clara Alameda	6,970.0 1,694.9 1,571.7 1,190.0 1,086.6	473 52 156 115 88	$\begin{array}{c} 6.79 \\ 3.07 \\ 9.93 \\ 9.66 \\ 8.10 \end{array}$
San Bernardino Sacramento San Francisco Contra Costa San Mateo	702.5 683.1 679.2 585.9 573.7	84 74 145 77 76	$11.96 \\ 10.83 \\ 21.34 \\ 13.14 \\ 13.25$	San Bernardino Sacramento San Francisco Contra Costa San Mateo	698.3 687.4 667.7 584.9 571.1	73 57 173 54 15	$10.45 \\ 8.29 \\ 25.91 \\ 9.23 \\ 2.62$
Balance of State	5,305.4	636	11.99	Balance of State	5,390.4	566	10.50

Total	20,933.0	2,076	9.92	Total	21,113.0	1,822	8.63
Imperial Napa Kern Trinity San Francisco Fresno Nevada Tulare	341.1 9.2 679.2 441.4	21 22 78 2 145 87 6 39	$\begin{array}{c} 26.06\\ 25.32\\ 22.87\\ 21.74\\ 21.34\\ 19.71\\ 19.23\\ 19.14 \end{array}$	San Francisco Fresno Yuba Monterey Madera Kern Imperial Tulare	$\begin{array}{r} 447.1 \\ 45.0 \\ 266.4 \\ 46.2 \\ 342.8 \\ 84.1 \end{array}$	173 110 11 62 9 66 15 34	$\begin{array}{r} 25.91\\ 24.60\\ 24.44\\ 23.27\\ 19.48\\ 19.25\\ 17.84\\ 16.37\end{array}$
Yuba Madera San Diego Stanislaus Monterey Ventura Mono	1,509.9 210.6 261.2 426.0	8 8 260 31 38 62 1	$18.10 \\ 17.70 \\ 17.22 \\ 14.72 \\ 14.54 \\ 14.55 \\ 14.08 $	Santa Cruz Shasta Mono Kings Merced San Bernardino Trinity	87.7 7.3 68.2 117.0 698.3	$24 \\ 13 \\ 1 \\ 9 \\ 15 \\ 73 \\ 1$	$16.17 \\ 14.82 \\ 13.70 \\ 13.20 \\ 12.82 \\ 10.45 \\ 10.41$
San Luis Obispo Santa Barbara San Mateo Contra Costa Santa Cruz Kings Lake	279.8 573.7 585.9 144.6	17 38 76 77 19 9 3	$13.79 \\ 13.58 \\ 13.24 \\ 13.14 \\ 13.14 \\ 12.95 \\ 12.71$	Sonoma San Diego Santa Clara Riverside Contra Costa Sutter	1,571.7 1,190.0 526.6	25 156 115 50 54 4	10.30 9.93 9.66 9.49 9.23 8.69
San Bernardino Sacramento Merced Riverside Balance of State	683.1 118.1 509.6	84 74 12 51 808	11.96 10.83 10.16 10.01 6.34	Balance of State	13,707.5	802	5.86

#### 

Note: Estimates of State population from State Department of Finance, Financial and Population Research Section publication.

### TABLE 6A

# ETHNIC GROUP BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

	To	Total		Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge	
Ethnic group	Number	Percent	Number	Pet ent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74			<u> </u>	le
Total	1,778	100.0	1,655	100.0	116	100.0	5
White White, Mexican descent Black Other	807 561 300 18	$\begin{array}{r} 45.4 \\ 31.6 \\ 21.9 \\ 1.1 \end{array}$	748 518 375 16	$\begin{array}{r} 45.0\\31.2\\22.6\\1.2\end{array}$	58 42 14 2	50.0 36.2 12.1 1.7	3 1 1 
		19	75				
Total	1,524	100.0	1,423	100.0	100	100.0	1
White White, Mexican descent Black Other	682 470 350 22	44.7 30.8 23.0 1.5	632 435 338 18	$\begin{array}{r} 44.4 \\ 30.6 \\ 23.7 \\ 1.3 \end{array}$	49 35 12 4	$49.0 \\ 35.0 \\ 12.0 \\ 4.0$	1 

#### TABLE 6B

# ETHNIC GROUP BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

	To	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemea	nor charge	No crimi- nal charge
Ethnic group	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number

		<u></u>	ويتستنف فستنب				
Total	300	100.0	246	100.0	54	100( ч	
White White, Mexican descent Black Other	153 70 70 7	$51.0 \\ 23.3 \\ 23.3 \\ 2.4 \\ 2.4$	125 57 58 0	50.8 23.2 23.6 2.4	28 13 12 1	51.9 24.1 22.2 1.8	

. 1	9	7	5
		•	-

Total	298	100.0	237	100.0	59	100.0	2
White White, Mexican descent Black	162 50 69	54,4 18,8 23,1	124 48 58	$52.3 \\ 20.3 \\ 24.5$	36 8 11	81.0 13.6 18.6	2
Other	11	3.7	7	2,9	4	6.8	

# TABLE 7A

# MEDIAN AGE AT ADMISSION MEN ADMITTED 1962 through 1975

Year	Number	Median age	Percent under 21	Perv int under 25
1962 1963 1964	984 1,063 1,107	24 7 26 0 24.9	13.7 12.4 11.2	52.3 44.2 51.0
1965 1966 1967 1968 1968 1969	913 1,085 1,428 1,555 1,981	26.4 27 6 26.7 26 2 25.7	9.8 7.3 12 9 13 4 14.4	42.0 34.6 40.7 43.3 46.7
1970 1971 1972 1973 1973 1974 1975	1,974 2,186 1,872 1,832 1,776 1,524	$\begin{array}{c} 24.9\\ 24.6\\ 24.7\\ 24.9\\ 25.3\\ 25.7\end{array}$	14 5 13 4 12.0 10.6 8.9 7.9	$51.3 \\ 54.0 \\ 52.4 \\ 50.3 \\ 48.3 \\ 45.4$

Note: Median computed from grouped data.

### TABLE 7B

# MEDIAN AGE AT ADMISSION WOMEN ADMITTED 1962 through 1975

Year	Number	Median age	Percent under 21	Percent under 25
1902 1963 1964	195 181 196	28.0 27.2 25.7	77 10.0 8.7	32.8 39 3 45.9
1965 1966 1947	143 146 217 228 264	27 4 27.0 26.0 25.7 25.2	9.1 8.9 12.8 12.3 15.1	36.4 39.0 45.6 45.7 48.8
1970 1971 1972 1973 1974 1974 1975	251 269 253 328 300 298	25.4 24.4 25.2 24,7 24.1 24.8	14.3 21.0 14.2 18.0 18.3 12.4	$\begin{array}{r} 48.2 \\ 55.4 \\ 48.5 \\ 53.1 \\ 59.3 \\ 52.0 \end{array}$

Note: Median computed from grouped data.

# TABLE 8A

# AGE AT ADMISSION BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

	To	tal	Felony	charge	Misden cha		No crimi- nal charge
Age at admission in years	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74		-		
Total	1,776	100.0	1,655	100,0	116	100.0	5
Under 20 18 19	69 19 50	3.9 1.1 2.8	60 18 42	$3.6 \\ 1.1 \\ 2.5$	0 1 8	7.8 0.9 6,9	
20–24 20 21 22 23 24	789 88 143 178 198 182	44.4 5.0 8.1 10,0 11,1 10.2	724 70 128 168 188 170	43.8 4.2 7.7 10.2 11,4 10,3	63 18 14 9 10 12	54.3 15.5 12.1 7.8 8.6 10.3	
25-29 30-34 35-39	557 204 89	$31.4 \\ 11.5 \\ 5.0$	525 196 86	31,7 11,8 5,2	29 8 3	$25.0 \\ 6.9 \\ 2.6$	3
40-44 45-49 50 and over	40 19 9	2.2 1.1 0.5	36 19 9	$2.2 \\ 1.2 \\ 0.5$	4	3.4 	
Median age in years	25.3		25.4		23.9		
Percent under 21		8.9		7.8		23.3	
Percent under 25		48.3		47.4		62.1	
	· · · · · ·	19	75				
Total	1,524	100,0	1,423	100.0	100	100,0	1
Under 20 18 19	40 5 44	$3.2 \\ 0.3 \\ 2.9$	37 3 34	2.6 0.2 2.4	12 2 10	12.0 2.0 10.0	
20-24 20	643 71 115 142 167 148	42.2 4.7 7.5 9.3 11.0 9.7	607 64 109 133 159 142	$\begin{array}{r} 42.7 \\ 4.5 \\ 7.7 \\ 9.3 \\ 11.2 \\ 10.0 \end{array}$	36 7 8 9 8 6	36.0 7.0 6.0 9.0 8.0 6.0	
25-29	531 163 80	34.9 10.7 5.2	492 153 78	34.5 10.7 5.4	38 10 2	38.0 10.0 2.0	1
40-44 45-49 50 and over	35 14 9	2.3 0.9 0.6	35 14 7	2.5 1.0 0.5	 -2	2.0	
Median age in years	25.7	ł	25.7		25,3		
Percent under 21	[	7,9		7.1		19.0	t sa si
Percent under 25		45.4		45.3		48,0	

Note: Median computed from grouped data.

CHART I CALIFORNIA AND INSTITUTION POPULATION, CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER 1965 THROUGH 1975 THOUSANDS THOUSANDS 30,000 25,000 25,000 20,000 20,000 CALIFORNIA 15,000 15,000 10,000 6.0 5.5 5,0 4.5 4.0 3.5 5,000 3,0 2.5 INSTITUTION POPULATION ÷. 2,0 2.0 1.5 1.5 1.0 1.0 1966 1967 1969 1965 1968 1970 1971 1972 1973 1974 1975

CIVIL COMMITMENT PROGRAM FOR NARCOTIC ADDICTS •



18

# CIVIL COMMITMENT PROGRAM FOR NARCOTIC ADDICTS

# TABLE 8B

# AGE AT ADMISSION BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

Age at admission in years	т	otal	Felony	charge	Mistler cha	neanor rge	No erimi- nal charge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74				
Total	300	100.0	246	100.0	51	100.0	
Under 20 18 19	22 7 15	$7.3 \\ 2.3 \\ 5.0$	21 6 15	$\substack{8.5\\2.4\\6.1}$	1 1 	1.8 1.8	
20-24 20 21 22 23 24	156 33 31 25 28 39	52.0 11.0 10.4 8.3 9.3 13.0	119 23 20 21 23 32	48.4 9.4 8.1 8.5 9.4 13.0	37 10 11 4 5 7	68.6 18.5 20.4 7.4 9.3 13.0	
25–29 30–34 35–39	83 25 8	$\begin{array}{r} 27.7\\ 8.4\\ 2.6\end{array}$	69 24 7	$28.1 \\ 9.8 \\ 2.8$	14 1 1	$26.0 \\ 1.8 \\ 1.8$	
40–44 45–49 50 and over	3 3 	1.0 1.0	3 3 	$1.2 \\ 1.2 \\$			
Median age in years	24.1	· . ·	24.3		23.5		
Percent under 21		18.3		17.9		20.3	
Percent under 25		59.3		56.9	-	70.4	
		19	75				
Total	298	100.0	237	100.0	59	100.0	2
Under 20 18 19	17 2 15	5.7 0.7 5.0	13 13	5.5 5.5	$\begin{array}{c} 4\\ 2\\ 2\end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 6.8 \\ 3.4 \\ 3.4 \end{array}$	
20-24 20 21 22 23 24	138 20 23 35 34 20	$\begin{array}{r} 46.3 \\ 6.7 \\ 7.7 \\ 11.7 \\ 11.4 \\ 8.8 \end{array}$	108 15 17 30 28 18	$\begin{array}{r} 45.6\\ 6.3\\ 7.2\\ 12.7\\ 11.8\\ 7.6\end{array}$	30 5 6 5 8	50.8 8.5 10.3 8,5 10.1 13.6	
25-29 30-34 35-39	101 26 13	33.0 8.8 4.3	80 23 10	33.8 9.7 4.2	10 3 3	$32.2 \\ 5.1 \\ 5.1$	2
40-44 45-49 50 and over	2 - 1	0.7 0.3	2 -1	0.8 0.4			
Median age in years	24.8		24,9		24,3		
Percent under 21		12.4		11.8		15.3	
Percent under 25		52.0		62.9	a an	57.6	1.1.1.1

Note: Median computed from grouped data.

# TABLE 9A EDUCATIONAL ACHIEVEMENT BY TYPE OF CHARGE

Men Admitted 1974 and 1975

	То	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemea	nor charge	No crimi- nal charge
Grade achievement score	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			
Total	1,776	a de la companya de	1,655		116		5
Not tested	73		62		11		44
Total tested	1,703	100.0	1,593	100.0	105	100.0	5
Illiterate Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 5		0.4 4.0 5.2 8.0 11.3	6 63 83 128 180	0.1 4.0 5.2 8.0 11.3	-6 5 8 11	5.7 4.8 7.6 10.5	
Grade 7 Grade 8 Grade 9 Grade 10-11 Grade 12 and over	201 225 213 404 169	11.8 13.2 12.5 23.7 9.9	187 207 200 384 155	11.7 13.0 12.6 24.1 9.7	14 17 12 18 14	13.3 16.2 11.4 17.2 13.3	 1 2 
Median grade	8.2		8.2		8.0		
		19	75				
Total	1,524		1,423		100		1
Not tested	33		31	· · · · .	2	e e de la	
Total tested	1,491 ·	100.0	1,392	100.0	98	100.0	1
Illiterate	1 66 85 140 147	0.1 4.4 5.7 9.4 9.9	1 63 83 133 137	0.1 4.5 6.0 9.6 9.8	3 2 7 10	3.1 2.0 7.1 10.2	
Grade 7 Grade 8 Grade 9 Grade 10-11. Grade 12 and over	176 219 178 345 134	11.8 14.7 11.9 23.1 9.0	162 200 165 323 125	11.6 14.4 11.8 23.2 9.0	14 19 13 22 8	14.3 19.4 13.3 22.4 8.2	  1
Median grade	8.1		8.1		8.2	a sa	

Note: Grade achievement scores are recorded on a continuous scale; the specific grades shown here represent the midpoints of the intervals (i.e., grade 3 = 2.5-3.4).

# TABLE 98 EDUCATIONAL ACHIEVEMENT BY TYPE OF CHARGE

Women Admitted 1974 and 1975

	To	ital	Felony	charge	Misdemea	nor charge	No crimi- nal charge
Grade achievement score	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74	· · · ·	·		
Total	300		246		54		
Not tested	94		77		17		
Total tested	206	100.0	169	100.0	37	100.0	
Illiterate Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 5	1 8 10 17 21	0.5 3.9 4.9 8.2 10.2	1 6 8 15 16	$0.6 \\ 3.6 \\ 4.7 \\ 8.9 \\ 9.5$	-2 2 2 5	5.4 5.4 5.4 13.5	
Grade 7 Grade 8 Grade 9. Grade 10-11. Grade 12 and over	27 33 26 54 9	$13.1 \\ 16.0 \\ 12.6 \\ 26.2 \\ 4.4$	23 23 23 46 8	$13.6 \\ 13.6 \\ 13.6 \\ 27.2 \\ 4.7$	4 10 3 8 1	$10.8 \\ 27.1 \\ 8.1 \\ 21.6 \\ 2.7$	
Median grade	8.1		8.2		7.9		
		19	75				
Total	298		237		59		2
Not tested	22		15		6		1.
Total tested	276	100.0	222	100.0	53	100.0	1
Illiterate Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 5 Grade 6	2 4 12 22 29	0.7 1.4 4.3 8.0 10.5	2 2 9 22 23	0.9 0.9 4.0 9.9 10.4	2 3 6	3.8 5.7 11.3	
Grade 7 Grade 8 Crade 9 Grade 10-11 Grade 12 and over	30 50 49 61 17	10.9 18.1 17.8 22.1 6.2	26 41 39 43 15	11.7 18.5 17.6 19.4 0.7	4 9 10 18 1	7.5 17.0 18.9 33.9 1.9	

Note: Grade achievement scores are recorded on a continuous scale; the specific grades shown here represent the midpoints of the intervals (i.e., grade 3 = 2.5-3.4).

8.2

8.8

8.3

Median grade\_\_\_\_\_

<u>د نید میش</u>د.

#### TABLE 10A

# TIME IN STATE BEFORE COMMITMENT ON CURRENT CHARGE BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN ADMITTED

# 1974 and 1975

Time in State before commitment	To	otal	Felony	charge	ge Misdemeanor cha		No erimi- nal charge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74	<u> </u>			
Total	1,776	100.0	1,655	100.0	116	100.0	5
Less than 1 month 1 month but less than 6 6 months but less than 12	2 4 6	0.1 0.2 0.3	2 4 6	$0.1 \\ 0.2 \\ 0.4$			 
1 year but less than 7	48 -	$1.1 \\ 1.0 \\ 2.7 \\ 4.5 \\ 90.1$	18 17 44 74 1,490	1.1 1.0 2.7 4.5 90.0	1 1 3 6 105	0.9 0.9 2.6 5.1 90.5	
		19	75		<u>.</u>		
Total	1,524	100.0	1,423	100.0	100	100.0	1
Less than 1 month 1 month but less than 6 6 months but less than 12	2 2 8	0.1 0.1 0.5	2 2 6	0.1 0.1 0.4	 -2	 2.0	
1 year but less than 2 2 years but less than 3 3 years but less than 5 5 years but less than 10 10 years or more	15 19 36 60 1,382	1.0 1,3 2.4 3.9 90.7	15 17 35 57 1,289	$1.1 \\ 1.2 \\ 2.5 \\ 4.0 \\ 90.6$	2 1 3 92	2.0 1.0 3.0 92.0	

TABLE 10B

TIME IN STATE BEFORE COMMITMENT ON CURRENT CHARGE BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN ADMITTED

1974 and 1975

Time in State before commitment	To	tal	Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge		No crimi- nal charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	
		19	74				-	
Total	300	100.0	246	100.0	54	100.0		
Less than 1 month 1 month but less than 6 6 months but less than 12	 				 	 ,		
1 year but less than 2           2 years but less than 3           3 years but less than 5           5 years but less than 10           10 years or more	3 2 4 13 278	$1.0 \\ 0.7 \\ 1.3 \\ 4.3 \\ 92.7$	2 2 10 230	$0.8 \\ 0.8 \\ 0.8 \\ 4.1 \\ 93.5$	1 -2 -3 48	$     1.9 \\     3.7 \\     5.5 \\     88.9     $		
		193	75				••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	
Total	298	100.0	237	100.0	59	100.0	2	
Less than 1 month 1 month but less than 6 6 months but less than 12		 1.0		1.3				
1 year but less than 2 2 years but less than 3 3 years but less than 5 5 years but less than 10 10 years or more		$0.3 \\ 1.3 \\ 4.7 \\ 92.7$	$\begin{array}{c}1\\-\overline{2}\\8\\223\end{array}$	0.4 0.8 3.4 94.1	 -2 -6 51	3.4 10.2 86.4	  - <u>2</u>	

# TABLE 11A

# AGE FIRST KNOWN ARREST INCLUDING PRESENT ARREST BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

Age first known arrest including present arrest	То	ta!	Folony	charge	Misdemea	nor charge	No crimi- nal charge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74				
Totai	1,776	100.0	1,655	100.0	116	100.0	5
No arrest						. <u> </u>	
Total arrested							
Under 12 12-13 14-15	80 204 354	4.5 11.5 19.9	77 194 336	$4.7 \\ 11.7 \\ 20.3$	3 10 16	2.6 8.6 13.8	
16 17 18	232 166 291	13.1 9.3 16.4	216 152 262	$13.0 \\ 9.2 \\ 15.8$	16 13 28	$13.8 \\ 11.2 \\ 24.1$	- <u>ī</u> 1
10-20 21-24 25-29 30 and over	234 158 47 10	$13.2 \\ 8.9 \\ 2.6 \\ 0.6$	220 142 46 10	$13.3 \\ 8.6 \\ 2.8 \\ 0.6$	13 16 1	11.2 13.8 0.9	1 
Median age in years	17.1		17.0		17.9		
		19	75				
Totai	1,524	100.0	1,423	100.0	100	100.0	1
No arrest							
Total arrested			· · ·				
Under 12 12–13 14–15	58 166 288	3.8 10.9 18.9	54 153 271	3.8 10.8 19.0	4 12 17	4.0 12.0 17.0	1
16 17 18	174 149 285	11.4 9.8 18.7	160 133 269	$     \begin{array}{r}       11.2 \\       9.4 \\       18.9     \end{array} $	14 16 16	14.0 16.0 16.0	
19-20 21-24 25-29 30 and over	205 147 43 9	$13.5 \\ 9.6 \\ 2.8 \\ 0.6$	198 135 43 7	13.9 9.5 3.0 0.5	7 12 -2	7.0 12.0 2.0	
Median age in years	17.5		17.6		17.2		

### TABLE 11B

# AGE FIRST KNOWN ARREST INCLUDING PRESENT ARREST BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN ADMITTED

1974 and 1975

Age first known arrest including present arrest	То	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemea	nor charge	No crimi- nal charge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
	· · ·	19	74	· · ·		<u>.</u>	
Total	300	100.0	246	100.0	54	100.0	
No arrest	9 <b>4</b> 4						
Total arrested							
Under 12 12–13 14–15	11 35 53	$3.7 \\ 11.7 \\ 17.6$	9 29 43	$3.7 \\ 11.8 \\ 17.5$	2 6 10	$3.7 \\ 11.1 \\ 18.5$	
16 17 18	26 25 38	$8.7 \\ 8.3 \\ 12.7$	22 21 29	8.9 8.5 11.8	4 4 9	7.4 7.4 16.7	
19-20 21-24 25-29 30 and over	52 42 17 1	$17.3 \\ 14.0 \\ 5.7 \\ 0.3$	42 34 16 1	17.1 13.8 6.5 0.4	10 8 1 	18.5 14.8 1.9	
Median age in years	17.9		17.9		18.1		
		195	75	<u>,</u>		•	
Total	298	100.0	237	100.0	59	100.0	2
No arrest	·			· · ·		· · · -	
Total arrested	. <b>.</b>				· · ·		
Under 12 12–13 14–15	10 28 38	3.4 9.4 12.8	9 21 35	3.8 8.9 14.8	1 7 3	$1.7 \\ 11.9 \\ 5.1$	
16 17 18	24 14 48	$\substack{8.1\\4.7\\16.1}$	21 11 37	8.9 4.6 15,6	3 3 11	5.1 5.1 18.6	
19-20 21-24 25-29 30 and over	46 63 23 4	$15.4 \\ 21.1 \\ 7.7 \\ 1.3$	34 48 18 3	$14.3 \\ 20.2 \\ 7.6 \\ 1.3$	12 14 4 1	20.3 23.7 6.8 1.7	
Median age in years	18.7		18.6		19.3		· · · · ·

# TABLE 12A PRIOR CRIMINAL COMMITMENT(S) SERVED BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

Prior criminal commitment(s)	То	tal	Felony	Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge	
served	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		193	74	1. 1.			
Total	1,776	100.0	1,655	100,0	116	100.0	5
No prior	293	16.5	258	15.6	33	28.4	2
1 or 2 jail or juvenile 3 or more jail or juvenile	587 643	33.0 36.2	544 612	32.8 37.0	41 30	$35.3 \\ 25.9$	2 1
Prior prison 1 prison 2 or more prison	253 178 75	14.3 10.1 4.2	241 171 70	14.6 10.4 4.2	12 7 5	$\begin{array}{c} 10.4\\ 6.1\\ 4.3\end{array}$	, , ,,
	· .	19	75				
Total	1,524	100.0	1,423	100.0	100	100,0	1
No prior	272	17.9	251	17.6	21	21.0	
1 or 2 jail or juvenile 3 or more jail or juvenile	537 545	35.2 35.8	494 514	34.7 36.1	43 30	43.0 30.0	ī
Prior prison 1 prison 2 or more prison	170 119 51	11.1 7.8 3.3	164 115 49	11.0 8.1 3.5	6 4 2	6.0 4.0 2.0	 

### TABLE 12B

# PRIOR CRIMINAL COMMITMENT(S) SERVED BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

Priot criminal commitment(s) served	То	tal	Felony	charge Misdemea		nor charge	No crimi nal charge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74	·	•		
Total	300	100.0	246	100.0	54	100.0	
No prior	114	38.0	88	35.8	26	48.1	
1 or 2 jail or juvenile 3 or more jail or juvenile	123 45	41.0 15.0	102 39	41.5 15.8	21 6	38.9 11.1	
Prior prison 1 prison 2 or more prison	18 13 5	$\begin{array}{c} 6.0 \\ 4.3 \\ 1.7 \end{array}$	17 13 4	$\begin{array}{c} 6.9 \\ 5.3 \\ 1.6 \end{array}$	1 -ī	1.9 1.9	
		19	75				
Total	298	100.0	237	100.0	59	100.0	2
No prior	102	34.2	79	33.3	21	35,6	2
1 or 2 jail or juvenile 3 or more jail or juvenile	124 64	41.6 21.5	98 53	$\substack{41.4\\22.4}$	26 11	44.1 18.6	=
Prior prison 1 prison 2 or more prison	8 8	2.7 2.7 	777	2.9 2.9 	1 1	1.7 1.7	
### TABLE 13A

### PRIOR PRISON COMMITMENT(S) SERVED BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

Prior prison commitment(s) served	Total		Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge		No criminal charge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
	197	4					
Total	1,776	100.0	1,655	100.0	116	109.0	5
No prior prison	1,523	85.7	1,414	85.4	104	89.6	5.
Prior prison	253	14.3	241	14.6	12	10.4	
Felon commitment to California Department of Corrections still active Prior California prison Prior other prison	65 110 78	$3.7 \\ 6.2 \\ 4.4$	64 102 75	3.9 6.2 4.5	1 8 3	$0.9 \\ 6.9 \\ 2.6$	
	197	5				an an an	
Total	1,524	100.0	1,423	100.0	100	100.0	1
No prior prison	1,351	88.7	1,256	88.3	94	94.0	1
Prior prison	173	11.3	167	11.7	6	6.0	]
Felon commitment to California Department of Corrections still active Prior California prison Prior other prison	35 107 31	$2.3 \\ 7.0 \\ 2.0$	32 105 30	$2.2 \\ 7.4 \\ 2.1$	$\begin{array}{c} 3\\ 2\\ 1\end{array}$	3.0 2.0 1.9	

Note: When more than one prior prison commitment was served, the California commitment, if any, was counted.

#### TABLE 13B

# PRIOR PRISON COMMITMENT(S) SERVED BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN ADMITTED

# 1974 and 1975

Prior prison commitment(s) served		Total		Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
	197	4		n Ara			
Total	. 300	100.0	246	100.0	54	100.0	
No prior prison	282	94.0	229	93.1	53	98.1	
D-las neison	18	6.0	. 17	6.9	1	1.9	
Pelon commitment to California Department o Corrections still active. Prior California prison Prior other prison	4 6 8	$1.3 \\ 2.0 \\ 2.7$	4 5 8	$1.6 \\ 2.0 \\ 3.3$	-ī 	1.9	
	197	5	• • • • • • •		• • • • •	<u> </u>	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
Total	298	100.0	237	100.0	59	100.0	2
No prior prison	290	97.4	230	97.1	58	98.3	2
Prior prison Felon commitment to California Department of Corrections still active	. 8	2.8	7	2.9	1	1.7	
Prior California prison Prior other prison	. 2	2.0 0.6	25	0.8 2.1	ī	1.7	

Note: When more than one prior prison commitment was served, the California commitment, if any, was counted,

# CHARACTERISTICS OF RESIDENTS IN CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER INSTITUTION PROGRAM

Residents in the civil narcotic addict population at the California Rehabilitation Center have the opportunity to participate in constructive programs including counseling, group therapy, work assignments, vocational training, academic education, and recreational activities. The population in the institutions at the end of 1975 was comprised of 1,863 men and 275 women, a total of 2,138 persons. The characteristics of persons in the institution program differ from those of persons at time of admission from court because of varying lengths of stay in the institution experienced by different admission cohorts.

On December 31, 1975, 94.2 percent of the men in residence had felony charges pending while only 82.5 percent of the women were in that category. Of the men with criminal charges, 42.1 percent had been convicted of controlled substance or marijuana offenses and 46.8 percent of crimes against property.

Of the 275 women with felony or misdemeanor convictions, 51.3 percent had been charged with controlled substance or marijuana offenses, while 43.6 percent had been charged with crimes against property.

Men and women in the institution program who had been committed from Southern California counties accounted for 55.9 percent and 56.7 percent of the institution population, respectively, at the close of 1975. These percentages were less than the corresponding percentages at the end of 1974. Persons received from Los Angeles County alone accounted for 29.0 percent of the men and 28.7 percent of the women residents on December 31, 1975.

At the end of 1975, 42.3 percent of the male addicts in residence were white; 33.0 percent were white, Mexican descent; and 23.9 percent were black. The corresponding percentages for the women were 56.7 percent white; 20.0 percent white, Mexican descent; and 20.7 percent black. The percentage of white males was less at the end of 1975 than at the close of 1974, while the percentage of white women was higher.

The median age of male residents was slightly higher in 1975 than in 1974. These medians were 27.1 years and 26.7 years, respectively. Only 3.9 percent of the men were under 21 years of age in 1975 as compared with 4.4 percent in 1974. Also, the percentage of men in the age group 25–29 years increased to 40.5 at the end of 1975, from 38.1 percent at the end of 1974. The group of women in the institution program at the close of 1975 was also older than the 1974 residents. The age medians of women were 26.0 years at the end of 1975 and 24.9 years one year prior. Only 42.9 percent of the women were under 25 years of age at the close of 1975 as compared with 50.4 percent at the

end of 1974. Of the residents in the Rehabilitation Center on December 31, 1975, three-fourths of the men and two-thirds of the women had served prior jail and/or juvenile commitments only prior to admission to the civil narcotic addict program. In addition, 11.4 percent of the men and 2.9 percent of the women had served prior prison terms.

The 1975 year-end population included 23.2 percent of the men and 23.6 percent of the women who had been released to and returned from outpatient status once. Male residents who had been released and returned at least twice accounted for 26.7 percent of the population, while the corresponding figure for women was 18.2 percent. Over 50 percent of the men and nearly 60 percent of the women had not been released since commitment.

#### TABLE 14A

# TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

	19	74	1975		
Type of charge	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	
Total	1,762	100.0	1,863	100.0	
Felony charge Misdemeanor charge No criminal charge	1,671 88 3	94.8 5.0 0.2	1,755 104 4	94.2 $5.6$ $0.2$	

#### TABLE 14B

# TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

	. 19	74	1975			
Type of charge	Number	Percent	Number	Percent		
Total	268	100.0	275	100.0		
Felony charge Misdemeanor charge No criminal charge	209 58 1	78.0 21.0 0.4	227 48 	82.5 17.5		

# CHARACTERISTICS OF RESIDENTS IN CRC PROGRAM

### TABLE 15A

### OFFENSE

### BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

	To	Total		Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge	
Offense	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	
	19	74					
Total No criminal charge Total charged CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemeanor narcotics Crimes against property Other relony offenses Dther misdemeanor offenses	618 76 28 781	$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	1,671 616 72 56  739 188 	100.0 36.9 4.3 3.4  44.2 11.2	88 2 4 28 42 3 5	100.0 2.3 4.6 4.6 31.8 47.7 3.4 5.6	
	19	75			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

	1,863		1. A			
No criminal charge	4					
Total charged	1,859	100.0	1,755	100.0	104	100,0
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemcanor narcotics	639 63 48 32	34.4 3.4 2.6 1.7	637 61 46	36.3 3,5 2.6 	2 2 2 32	$1.9 \\ 1.9 \\ 1.9 \\ 30.8$
Orimes against property Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	871 200 6	46.8 10.8 0.3	819 192 	46.7 10.9	52 8 6	50.0 7.7 5.8

\* Controlled Substances Schedules.



# CHARACTERISTICS OF RESIDENTS IN CRC PROGRAM

### TABLE 15B

### OFFENSE

BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM

December 31, 1974 and 1975

	Total		Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge	
Offense	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
	19	74		······································	L	
Total No criminal charge Total charged CSS* I & II (opiate) OSS* III, 1V & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misiemeanor narcotics Crimes against property Other folony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	268 1 267 95 12 5 12 12 125 12 6	100.0 $35.6$ $4.5$ $1.9$ $4.5$ $46.8$ $4.5$ $2.2$	209 93 5  92 11 	100.0 44.5 3.8 2.4  44.0 5.3	58 2 4 12 33 1 6	100.0 3.4 6.9 20.7 56.9 1.7 10.4
	197	5				

				14 C		
 Total	275					
No criminal charge						
Total charged	275	100.0	227	100.0	48	100.0
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemeanor narcotics	$\begin{array}{c}112\\5\\3\\21\end{array}$	40.7 1.8 1.1 7.7	111 3 3 	48.9 1.3 1.3 	$\overline{2}$ $\overline{21}$	2.1 4.2 43.7
Crimes against property Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	120 8 6	$43.6 \\ 2.9 \\ 2.2$	102 8 	45.0 3.5 	18 -6	37.5 12.5

\* Controlled Substances Schedules.

**33** //



ويتيته

# CHARACTERISTICS OF RESIDENTS IN CRC PROGRAM

### TABLE 16A

### AREA OF COMMITMENT BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

Area of commitment	Total		Felony charge		Misdemea	No crimi- nal charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74				•
Total	1,762	100.0	1,671	100.0	88	100.0	3
Southern California counties Los Angeles County 9 other counties	1,039 531 508	59.0 30.2 28.8	984 514 470	58.9 30.8 28.1	52 16 36	59.1 18.2 40.9	3 1 2
Northern California counties	723	41.0	687	41.1	36	40.9	
		19	75				
Total	1,863	100.0	1,755	100.0	104	100.0	4
Southern California counties Los Angeles County 9 other counties	1,042 541 501	55.9 29.0 26.9	981 523 458	$55.9 \\ 29.8 \\ 26.1$	57 14 43	54.8 13.5 41.3	4
Northern California counties	821	44.1	774	44.1	47	45.2	

### TABLE 16B

# AREA OF COMMITMENT BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

Area of commitment			Total	Fel			neanor Irge	No criminal charge
		Nu	mber Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
			1974					
Total	268	100.0	209	100.0		58 10	0.0	1
Southern California counties Los Angeles County 9 other counties	169 76 93	$63.1 \\ 28.4 \\ 34.7$	66	$     \begin{array}{r}       63.6 \\       31.6 \\       32.0     \end{array} $	1	10	2.1 7.3 4.8	
Northern California counties	99	36.9	76	36.4		22	87.9	1
	<u></u>	- <b>L</b>	1975					

ŝ	a	1	Έ.	
1	7		J .	

and the second secon				<u></u>			
To tal	275	100.0	227	100.0	48	100.0	
Southern California counties Los Angeles County 9 other counties	156 79 77	$56.7 \\ 28.7 \\ 28.0$	127 65 62	55.9 28.6 27.3	29 14 15	60.4 29.2 31.2	 
Northern California counties	119	43.3	100	44.1	19	39.6	

### TABLE 17A

# ETHNIC GROUP

BY TYPE OF CHARGE

MEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM

December 31, 1974 and 1975

Ethnic group	Total		Felony charge		Misdemear	No crimi- nal charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74			÷ ·	
Total White White, Mexican descent Black Other	1,762 789 561 395 17	100.0 44.8 31.8 22.4 1.0	1,671 746 527 382 16	$100.0 \\ 44.6 \\ 31.5 \\ 22.9 \\ 1.0 \\$	88 42 33 12 1	100.0 47.7 37.5 13.7 1.1	3 1 1 1 
		19	75				
Total White White, Mexican descent Black Other	1,863 789 614 446 14	$100.0 \\ 42.3 \\ 33.0 \\ 23.9 \\ 0.8 $	1,755 740 573 430 12	$100.0 \\ 42.2 \\ 32.0 \\ 24.5 \\ 0.7 \\ 0.7$	104 47 39 16 2	$100.0 \\ 45.2 \\ 37.5 \\ 15.4 \\ 1.9$	

### TABLE 17B

# ETHNIC GROUP

### BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

Ethnic group	Total		Felony charge		Misdemea	No crimi- nal charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
	· · · ·	197	74	•	la de la composition a la composition a la composition de la composition de la composition de la comp		
Total	268	100.0	209	100.0	58	100.0	1
White White, Mexican descent Black Other	131 64 67 6	$48.0 \\ 23.9 \\ 25.0 \\ 2.2$	98 52 54 5	$46.9 \\ 24.9 \\ 25.8 \\ 2.4$	32 12 13 1	$55.2 \\ 20.7 \\ 22.4 \\ 1.7$	1
		19:	75				
Total	275	100.0	227	100.0	48	100.0	
White White, Mexican descent Black Other	156 55 57 7	56.7 20.0 20.7 2.6	122 49 50 6	53.7 21.6 22.0 2.7	34 6 7 1	$70.8 \\ 12.5 \\ 14.6 \\ 2.1$	  

# CHARACTERISTICS OF RESIDENTS IN CRC PROGRAM

### TABLE 18A

# AGE IN YEARS BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

Age in years	Ta	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemea	nor charge	No crimi- nal charge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	78		L	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
Total	1,762	100.0	1,671	100.0	88	100.0	3
Under 20 20-24 21 22 23 24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40 and over Median age in years Percent under 21	24 634 53 105 137 159 180 672 237 111 84 26.7	$ \begin{array}{c} 1.4\\ 36.0\\ 6.0\\ 7.8\\ 9.0\\ 10.2\\ 38.1\\ 13.4\\ 6.3\\ 4.8\\ 4.4 \end{array} $	23 586 43 91 127 157 168 644 229 108 81 26.8	$1.4 \\ 35.1 \\ 2.6 \\ 5.4 \\ 7.6 \\ 9.4 \\ 10.1 \\ 38.5 \\ 13.7 \\ 6.5 \\ 4.8 \\ 4.0$	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\ 46\\ 10\\ 13\\ 10\\ 2\\ 11\\ 27\\ 8\\ 3\\ 3\\ 24.7\\ \end{array} $	$\begin{array}{c} 1.1 \\ 52.3 \\ 11.4 \\ 14.7 \\ 11.4 \\ 2.3 \\ 12.5 \\ 30.7 \\ 9.1 \\ 3.4 \\ 3.4 \\ 12.5 \end{array}$	
Percent under 25		37.4		36.5		53.4	
		19;	75				·
Total	1,863	100.0	1,755	100.0	104	100.0	4
Under 20 20-24 21 22 23 24	24 586 48 75 134 143 186	$1.3 \\ 31.4 \\ 2.6 \\ 4.0 \\ 7.2 \\ 7.6 \\ 10.0$	18 549 45 66 123 136 179	1.0 31.3 2.6 3.8 7.0 7.7 10.2	6 37 3 9 11 7 7	5.8 35.6 2.9 8.7 10.6 6.7 6.7	
25-29 30-34 35-39 40 and over	754 279 116 104	40.5 15.0 6.2 5.6	713 268 110 97	40.6 15.3 6.3 5.5	41 9 4 7	39.4 8.7 3.8 6.7	- <u>2</u> 2
Median age in years	27.1		27.2		26.1		
Percent under 21		3.9		3.6		8.7	
Percent under 25	ang dar	32.7		32.3	1.1.1 C	41.4	

Note: Median computed from grouped data.

### TABLE 18B

# AGE IN YEARS BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

Age in years	То	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemea	nor charge	No crimi- nal charge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		193	74				
Total	268	100.0	209	100.0	58	100.0	1
Under 20 20-24 21 22 22 23 24	11 124 20 34 25 20 25	$\begin{array}{r} 4.1 \\ 46.3 \\ 7.5 \\ 12.7 \\ 9.3 \\ 7.5 \\ 9.3 \end{array}$	11 89 15 19 18 16 21	5.3 42.6 7.2 9.1 8.6 7.7 10.0	34 5 15 7 3 4	58.7 25.9 12.1 5.2 6.9	
25–29	87 30 11 5	$32.4 \\ 11.2 \\ 4.1 \\ 1.9$	69 26 9 5	$33.0 \\ 12.4 \\ 4.3 \\ 2.4$	18 4 2 	31.0 6.9 3.4 	
Median age in years	24.9		25.3	en e	24.3		
Percent under 21		11.6		12.5	5 B. B.	8.6	
Percent under 25		50.4		47.9		58.7	
		19:	75				
Total	275	100.0	227	100.0	48	100.0	
Under 20 20-24 21 22 22 23 24	7 111 16 13 30 28 24	$2.6 \\ 40.3 \\ 5.8 \\ 4.7 \\ 10.9 \\ 10.2 \\ 8.7$	4 87 15 9 24 22 17	1.838.36.63.910.69.77.5	3 24 1 4 6 8 7	$\begin{array}{r} 6.3 \\ 50.0 \\ 2.1 \\ 8.3 \\ 12.5 \\ 12.5 \\ 14.6 \end{array}$	
25-29 30-34 35-39 40 and over	100 36 14 7	$36.3 \\ 13.1 \\ 5.1 \\ 2.6$	85 31 13 7	$37.4 \\ 13.7 \\ 5.7 \\ 3.1$	15 5 1	31.2 10.4 2.1 	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Median age in years	26.0		26.3		26.0		
Percent under 21		8.4		8.4		8.4	
Percent under 25		42.9		40.1		56.3	

Note: Median computed from grouped data.



e' . ' .

### TABLE 19A

### PRIOR CRIMINAL COMMITMENT(S) SERVED BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

No crimi-Total Felony charge Misdemeanor charge nal charge Prior criminal commitment(s) served Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number 1974 1,762 100.0 1,671 100.0 88 100.0 Total-----3 No prior commitment\_\_\_\_\_ Prior jail or juvenile only\_\_\_\_\_  $13.3 \\ 74.2$ 234 210 12.6 23 26.1  $\frac{1}{2}$ 74.7 9.2 3.5 1,248 1,308 58 65.9 One prison Two or more prison 158 9.0 154 43 4.6 ---------62 3.5 3.4 59 \_\_\_ 1975 100.0 Total\_\_\_\_ 1,863 100.0 1,755 104 100.0 4 13.1 75.5 8.3  $13.1 \\ 75.5 \\ 8.3 \\ 3.1$ No prior commitment\_\_\_\_\_ Prior jail or juvenile only\_\_\_\_\_ One prison\_\_\_\_\_ 245 230 14.4 15 78 78 8 3 75.0 4 1,325 146 1,407 154 ---Two or more prison\_\_\_\_\_ 57 3.1 54---

#### TABLE 19B

# PRIOR CRIMINAL COMMITMENT(S) SERVED

### BY TYPE OF CHARGE

### WOMEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

Prior criminal commitment(s)	То	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemea	No crimi nal charge	
scrved	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74				
Total	268	100.0	209	100.0	58	100.0	1
No prior commitment Prior jail or juvenile only One prison Two or more prison	80 173 12 3	$29.8 \\ 64.6 \\ 4.5 \\ 1.1$	54 141 11 3	$25.8 \\ 67.5 \\ 5.3 \\ 1.4$	25 32 1	43.1 55.2 1.7	
		19	75				
Total	275	100.0	227	100.0	48	100.0	
No prior commitment Prior jai or juvenile only One prison	85 182 8	$30.9 \\ 66.2 \\ 2.9$	67 153 7	$29.5 \\ 67.4 \\ 3.1$	18 29 1	$37.5 \\ 60.4 \\ 2.1$	

.....

One prison\_\_\_\_\_ Two or more prison\_\_\_\_\_

40

---

# CHARACTERISTICS OF RESIDENTS IN CRC PROGRAM

### TABLE 20A STATUS WITH REFERENCE TO OUTPATIENT EXPERIENCE BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1974 and 1975

Outpatient experience	Total		Felony charge		Misdemea	No crimi- nal charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74		<b>L</b>	· · · · · · · · ·	<b>.</b>
Total	1,762	100.0	1,671	100.0	88	100.0	3
Not released since commitment Released and returned once Released and returned twice Released and returned more than	1,038 317 225	58.9 18.0 12.8	980 302 `14	58.6 18.1 12.8	56 15 11	63.6 17.1 12.5	2
trice	182	10.3	175	10.5	6	6.8	1
		19:	75				
Total	1,863	100.0	1,755	100.0	104	100.0	4
Not released since commitment Released and returned once Released and returned twice Released and returned more than	934 433 271	50.1 23.2 14.6	871 411 255	49.7 23.4 14.5	62 21 16	$59.6 \\ 20.2 \\ 15.4$	
twice	225	12.1	218	12.4	5	4.8	2

### TABLE 20B STATUS WITH REFERENCE TO OUTPATIENT EXPERIENCE BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM

### December 31, 1974 and 1975

Outpatient experience	Totai		Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge		No crimi- nal charge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
		19	74	<b></b>	┖╾╍╼╌╍╌		<b>(</b>
Total	265	100.0	209	100.0	58	100.0	1 1
Not released since commitment Released and returned once Released and returned twice	166 55 23	61.9 20.5 8.6	134 39 18	64.1 18.7 8.6	32 16 5	55.2 27.6 8.6	
Released and returned more than twice	24	9.0	18	8.6	5	8.6	1

i da ser en		1. S.					
Total	275	100.0	227	100.0	48	100.0	
Not released since commitment Released and returned once Released and returned twice Released and returned more than twice		58,2 23,6 10,2 8,0	131 58 23 15	57.7 25.6 10.1 6.6	29 7 5 7	60.4 14.6 10.4 14.6	••• •••
***************************************	~~	0.0	1				

# CIVIL NARCOTIC ADDICTS RELEASED FROM THE INSTITUTION

Of the 3,901 male civil narcotic addicts released from the California Rehabilitation Center institution program during 1975, a total of 3,497 were discharged, released to outpatient supervision, or died. Of the 3,497 men, 90.2 percent were released to outpatient status, 0.5 percent released by discharge at expiration of commitment, and 9.2 percent returned to court as unfit for the program. The 614 women civil narcotic addicts similarly released from the institution during the year included 92.1 percent placed on outpatient supervision, 0.2 percent discharged at expiration of commitment, and 7.5 percent returned to court as unfit for the program.

Men and women first released and those re-released after return from outpatient status are studied separately according to type of charge, either felony charge, misdemeanor charge, or no criminal charge. Persons who were re-released are further classified by type of return from outpatient supervision either with or without new civil commitments.

Men experiencing first release to outpatient status during 1972 through 1975 spent a median seven months in residence at the California Rehabilitation Center. Women first released to outpatient status during 1975 spent a median seven months in the institution before release. The corresponding 1974 median was six months. Men and women charged with felony offenses were in the institution program a median eight months before release to outpatient supervision during 1975. Male narcotic addicts committed to the institution program following an original charge of robbery, first degree, stayed a median 12 months prior to first release to outpatient status in 1975.

Persons released to outpatient status for the first time during 1975 with felony charges pending for opiate offenses were in the institution a median eight months before release, while those with charges of forgery and check offenses were in residence a median seven months.

### TABLE 21A METHOD OF RELEASE BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN RELEASED FROM INSTITUTION 1974 and 1975

Method of release	Тс	otal		ony Arge		neanor Irge	No cr cha	iminal rge
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
	· · ·	197	4	<u> </u>	••••••••••		<b>.</b>	<u>.</u>
Total	3,535	100.0	3,272	100.0	218	100.0	45	100.0
To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commitment Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ Death	2,948 7 579 1	83.4 0.2 16.4 0.0	2,747 5 520	84.0 0.1 15.9	178 40	81.7 18.3	23 2 19 1	51.1 4.5 42.2 2.2
First release	1,575	44.6	1,475	45.1	95	43.6	5	11.1
To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commitment. Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ.	1,295 280	36.6 8.0	1,208 267	36.9 8,2 	83 12 	38.1	4	8.9 2.2
Re-release	1,960	55.4	1,797	54.9	123	56.4	40	88.9
After return with new civil commitment To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commit-	227 191	6.4 5.4	220 186	6.7 5.7	75	3.2 2.3		
ment Discharge-unfit for program Discharge-by writ Death	36	1.0	34	1.0	2	0.9		
After return without new civil commit-								
To outpatient status. Discharge by expiration of commit-	1,733 1,462	49.0 41.4	1,577 1,353	48.2 41.4	116 90	53.2 41.3	40 19	88.9 42.2
ment. Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ. Death.	263 1	0.2 7.4 0.0	219	0.1 6.7	26 	11.9 	18 18 	4.5 40.0 2.2
	• • • •	197	5	• •	<u>,</u>	·	<u> </u>	·
Total	3,497	100.0	3,273	100.0	203	100.0	21	100.0
To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commitment Discharge—unit for program Discharge—by writ Death	3,155 16 324 2	90.2 0.5 9.2 0.1	2,973 12 286 -2	90.8 0.4 8.7 0.1	166 2 35 	81.8 1.0 17.2	16 2 3 	76.2 9.5 14.3
First release	1,626	46.5	1,523	46.5	101	49.7	2	9.5
To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commitment Discharge—unit for program Discharge—by writ Death	1,469 155 2	42.0 4.4 0.1	1,379 142 2	42.1 4.3 0.1	88 13	43.3 6.4	2	9.5
Re-release	1,871	53.5	1,750	53.5	102	50.3	19	90.8
After return with new civil commitment To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commit-	204 172	5.8 4.9	198 168	6.1 5.2	64	2.0 2.0		
ment Dischargeunfit for program Dischargeby writ Death	32 	0.9	30	0.9	2	1.0		
After return without new civil commit- ment	1.667 1,514	47.7 43.3	1.552 1,426	47.4 43.5	96 74	47.3 36.5	19 14	90.5 66.7
ment. Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ. Death	16 137	0.5		0.4 3.5	20 	1.0 9.8	2 8 	9.5 14.8 

à

# TABLE 21BMETHOD OF RELEASEBY TYPE OF CHARGEWOMEN RELEASED FROM INSTITUTION1974 and 1975

Method of release	To	tal	Fel cha	ony rge	Misder cha		No er cha	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
	<u> </u>	197	4				<u></u>	
Total	521	100.0	427	100.0	89	100.0	5	100.0
To outpatient status	503	96.5	412	96.5	86	96.6	5	100,0
Discharge by expiration of commitment Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ Death	18	3.5	15	3.5	3	3.4		
Discharge—by writ		·		· ·				
First release	278	53.4	231	54.1	46	51.7	1	20.0
To outpatient status	266	51.1	220	51.6	45	50.5	1	20.0
Discharge by expiration of commitment. Discharge—unfit for program	12	2.3	11	2.5	ī	1.2		
Discharge—unft for program Discharge—by writ Death								
Re-release	243	46.6	196	45.9	43	48.3	4.	80.0
After return with new civil commitment To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commit-	24 22	$4.6 \\ 4.2$	22 20	5.1 4.6	2 2	2.2 2.2		
	2	0.4		0.5		·		
Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ Death		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			1			
After return without new civil commit			1					
ment To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commit-	219 215	42.0 41.2	174 172	40.8 40.3	41 39	46.1 43.9	4	80.0 80.0
ment Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ	4	0.8	-72	0.5	2	2.2		
Discharge—by writ-								- <u> </u>
		197	5		. :	<u>.</u>		·
Total	614	100.0	482	100.0	127	100.0	5	100.0
To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commitment	566	92.1	451	93.6 0.2	112	88.2	3	60.0
Discharge-unfit for program	46	0.2 7.5	29	6.0	15	11.8	-72	40.0
Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ Death	ī	0.2	1	0.2				1
First release	304	49.5	241	50.0	61	48.0	2	40.0
To outpatient status	278	45.2	222	46.1	55	43.3	1	20.0
Discharge-unit for program	25	4.1	18	3.7	6	4.7	<b>1</b>	20.0
To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commitment, Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ Death	1	0.2	ī	0.2				
Re-release	310	50.5	241	50.0	66	52.0	3	60.0
After return with new civil commitment To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commit-	. 19	3.4 3.1	18 17	3.7 3.5	32	2.4 1.6		<u>بن</u> 
ment Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ	-2	0.3	1	0.2	i	0.8		
Death					1 5			
After return without new civil commit- ment	289	47.1	223	46.3	63	49.5	3	60.0
To outpatient status Discharge by expiration of commit-	. 269	43.8	212	44.0	55	43.3	32	40.0
Discharge—unfit for program Discharge—by writ Death	1 1	0.2	1 10	0.2	-8	6.3	1	20.0

# CIVIL NARCOTIC ADDICTS RELEASED FROM CRC

### TABLE 22A

# MEDIAN TIME IN RESIDENCE BEFORE LAST RELEASE TYPE OF RELEASE AND TYPE OF CHARGE MEN RELEASED TO OUTPATIENT STATUS 1969 through 1975

an an tha an				c	Re-release al alifornia Reha	ter return to bilitation Cent	er
Year of release	Total number	First i	release	With civil com	new mitment	Witho civil con	ut new mitment
	released	Number	Median time in residence in months	Number	Mediau time in residence in months	Number	Median wate in residence in months
			Total				
1969 1970 1971	2,763 3,506 4,089	1,338 1,777 2,247	10 11 8	147 198 216	10 11 8	1,283 1,531 1,626	8 7 4
1972 1973 1974 1975	3.208 3,597 2,948 3,155	1,697 1,588 1,295 1,469	7 7 7 7	207 211 191 172	7 8 9	1,304 1,798 1,462 1,514	2 4 4 4
······································			Felony ch	arge			
1969 1970 1971	2,113 2,721 3,381	987 1,394 1,922	10 11 8	141 187 205	10 11 8	985 1,140 1,254	8 7 3
1972 1973 1974 1975	2,861 3,276 2,747 2,973	1,570 1,462 1,208 1,379	7 7 7 8	197 203 186 163	7 8 8 9	1,094 1,611 1,353 1,426	2 4 5 4
		N	lisdemeanor	charge			••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
1969 1970 1971	322 365 343	146 154 163	10 10 8	6 9 7	•	170 202 173	9 8 5
1972 1973 1974 1975	235 257 178 166	106 114 83 88	6 6 7	9 6 5 4	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	120 137 90 74	$2.5 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2.5 \\ 2.5$
			No criminal	charge			
1969 1970 1971	333 420 365	205 229 162	9 10 8	- <u>-</u> 2 4	•••	128 189 199	7 6 2
1972 1973 1974 1975	112 64 23 16	21 12 4 2	6	12	•	90 50 19 14	2 2 3 •

Note: Mandatory six months confinement was rescinded by 1970 legislation, effective November 1970 (W&I Code Section 3151 amended). \* Median computed for 15 or more cases.



# CIVIL NARCOTIC ADDICTS RELEASED FROM CRC

### TABLE 22B

# MEDIAN TIME IN RESIDENCE BEFORE LAST RELEASE TYPE OF RELEASE AND TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN RELEASED TO OUTPATIENT STATUS 1969 through 1975

				C	Re-release a alifornia Reha	fter return to bilitation Cent	er ,
Year of release	Total number	First 1	elease		With new civil commitment		ut new mitment
	released	Number	Median time in residence in months	Number	Median time in residence in months	Number	Median time in residence in months
			Total				
1969 1970 1971	471 438 471	242 205 254	10 9 9	24 10 24	8 • 8	205 223 193	7 7 4
1972 1973 1974 1975	463 505 503 566	272 284 266 278	7 6 7	10 26 22 19	6 6 7	181 195 215 269	2 4 2 3
			Felony ch	arge			
1969 1970 1971	315 299 350	149 148 192	10 9 9	24 8 24	8 • 8	142 143 134	7 7 4
1972 1973 1974 1975	367 401 412 451	231 231 220 222	7 6 6 8	10 26 20 17	* 6 7	126 144 172 212	3 4 2 3.5
	· · · · · · · ·	N	lisdemeanor	charge		-	
1969 1970 1971	96 93 86	55 32 44	11 9 8	 		41 59 42	8 7 6
1972 1973 1974 1975	75 95 86 112	33 49 45 55	8 6 8 7	 2 2	•	42 46 39 55	2 2.5 4.5 3
		ŀ	lo criminal	charge			
1969 1970 1971	60 46 35	38 25 18	9 9 8.5			22 21 17	7 5 3
1972 1973 1974 1975	21 9 5 3	8 4 1 1	•			13 5 4 2	

Note: Mandatory six months confinement was rescinded by 1970 legislation, effective November 1970 (W&I Code Section 3151 amended). • Median computed for 15 or more cases.

48



\_\_\_\_\_

### CIVIL NARCOTIC ADDICTS RELEASED FROM CRC

### TABLE 23A

# OFFENSE AND MEDIAN TIME IN RESIDENCE MEN RELEASED TO OUTPATIENT STATUS FOR THE FIRST TIME 1974 and 1975

	19	974	1975		
Offense	Number	Median time in residence in months	Number	Median time in residence in months	
Total	1,295 4	7	1,469 2	7	
Total charged	1,291	7	1,467	7	
Felony charge Robbery 1st Robbery 2nd Burglary 1st Burglary 2nd All thefts Forgery and checks	23 46 20 332	7 12 10 8 7 7 7	1,379 40 71 46 353 171 93	8 12 10 8 7 7 .7	
CSS*1&II (opiate) CSS*III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Other felonies	458 41 37 26	7 7 7 9,5	486 48 29 42	8 7 7 8	
Misdemeanor charge	83	6	88	7	

\* Controlled Substances Schedules. Note: Median computed for 15 or more cases.

### TABLE 23B

# OFFENSE AND MEDIAN TIME IN RESIDENCE WOMEN RELEASED TO OUTPATIENT STATUS FOR THE FIRST TIME

### 1974 and 1975

	-	19	74	1975		
Offense	Number		Median time in residence in mon hs	Number	Median time in residence in months	
Total	266		6	278	7	
No criminal charge	1	·		1		
Total charged	265	. ]	6	277	7	
Felony charge Forgery and checks CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Other felonies	220 49 99 11 5 56		6 6 7 7	222 54 102 10 2 54	8 7 8  8	
Misdemeanor charge	45		6	55	7	

\* Controlled Substances Schedules. Note: Median computed for 15 or more cases.

à:

# OUTPATIENT POPULATION

Most of the California Rehabilitation Center residents are released to outpatient supervision. The civil narcotic outpatient population was comprised of 4,472 men and 829 women on December 31, 1975. This total of 5,301 persons was 224 less than the 5,525 outpatients under supervision at the close of the previous year.

Persons entering outpatient supervision during 1975 numbered 8,-338 of whom 6,990 were men and 1,348 women. Of these 8,338 persons received in outpatient status, 3,721 came under supervision directly from the institution, and 4,613 persons had been reinstated to active supervision after having been suspended from active status for noncompliance with good outpatient behavior.

Persons leave outpatient supervision by successfully completing the program, by being suspended for noncompliance with the program, by discharge, by court order, or by death.

During 1975, men suspended accounted for 87.1 percent of those removed from outpatient status while women suspended accounted for 88.6 percent of female outpatients removed from supervision.

A total of 651 men and 131 women were released from outpatient status following successful completion of the program during 1975.

Persons originally charged with felony offenses comprised the major portion of the year-end 1974 and 1975 outpatient populations. Of the December 31, 1975 population, 93.0 percent of the men and 81.2 percent of the women had been charged with felony offenses. Of the 4,159 men charged with felony offenses, 41.3 percent were convicted of opiate derivative offenses and 39.6 percent were convicted of crimes against property. Of the 673 women on outpatient status at the close of 1975 who had felony charges pending against them, 47.0 percent had been convicted of opiate offenses and 38.2 percent of crimes against property.

At the end of 1975 nearly all outpatients were supervised in California, only 2.2 percent of the men and 1.6 percent of the women were out of state or in custody. Exactly 57.2 percent of the men and 63.9 percent of the women on outpatient status were located in Southern California.

The ethnic distributions of men in outpatient status in 1974 and 1975 were similar. The distribution in 1975 was 46.7 percent white; 31.1 percent white, Mexican descent; and 21.3 percent black. The ethnic classification of the women outpatients was slightly different from that of the men as 53.8 percent were white, 18.0 percent were white, Mexican descent, and 26.3 percent were black.

More than half of the men in outpatient status on December 31, 1974 and 1975 were experiencing outpatient supervision for the first time, 51.6 percent and 52.1 percent, respectively. At the end of 1975, 56.1 percent of the women in outpatient status were outpatients for the first time, representing a decrease from the 58.8 percent on that status at the close of the previous year.

At the end of 1975, 46.8 percent of the male outpatients and 46.9 percent of the women outpatients had been under supervision less than one year. The percentages did not correspond so closely for persons who had been in outpatient status three or more years, as 16.0 percent of the men and 13.3 percent of the women had been under supervision for this extended period of time.

The 2,943 men suspended for the first time from outpatient supervision during 1975 had been under supervision a median four months before suspension occurred. Time under supervision before first suspension of the women was one month less than that of the men. A median three months elapsed before the 498 women were first suspended during 1975. These respective medians, of four months for men and three months for women, had been the same for each group during 1973 and 1974. Many suspended persons are reinstated to active outpatient supervision and are not returned to the institution program. During 1975, 4,613 persons were reinstated. Those reinstated included 3,831 men and 782 women.

Persons returned to the institution after suspension from outpatient status are studied by year of release to outpatient status. At the end of 1975, 22.2 percent of the 3,155 men released during 1975 had been returned to the California Rehabilitation Center institution program. This percentage was an increase of 5.6 percentage points from the corresponding percentage of the previous year. Most of the men returned to the institution program were returned without a new civil narcotic commitment. The 22.2 percent representing men released from the institution and returned to the institution program during 1975 was comprised of 21.0 percent returned from the outpatient status without a new civil narcotic commitment and 1.2 percent returned with a new civil narcotic commitment.

The percentage of women narcotic addicts who were institution program during the year of release to outpatient status has increased for the past two years. The percentage of women addicts who were released and returned to the institution program during the year of release was 12.5 percent in 1973, 17.7 percent in 1974, and 20.1 percent in 1975.

The California statutes which establish the California Rehabilitation Center programs require that persons under certain types of commitment not be discharged from outpatient status until a specified period of time with good behavior has elapsed. Therefore, final disposition of persons placed under outpatient supervision is more accurately reflected in the data of earlier release cohorts. A study of the disposition of persons placed in outpatient status by the year of release from the institution program indicates that 20.3 percent of the men released during 1970 and 18.5 percent of those released during 1971 successfully completed the outpatient program. The percentages for the years

1970 through 1975 are not a true indication of the number of successful cases as sufficient time has not elapsed for final measurement. As of December 31, 1975, 27.4 percent of the women civil addicts placed in outpatient status during 1970 and 31.6 percent of those placed under outpatient supervision in 1971 had successfully completed the outpatient program. Sufficient time has not elapsed to determine the percentage of women who may successfully complete the program following release to outpatient supervision during 1972 and thereafter.

### TABLE 24

### MOVEMENT IN OUTPATIENT STATUS

		1974 1975					
Type of movement	Total	Men	Women	Total	Men	Women	
Population, end of previous year	5,642	4,854	788	5,525	4,725	800	
Received in outpatient status From institution Reinstated Reactivated	8,044 3,451 4,585 8	6,862 2,948 3,906 8	1,182 503 679	8,338 3,721 4,613 4	6,990 3,155 3,831 4	1,348 560 782	
Removed from outpatient status Suspended Successfully completed program Discharged by other court order* Died	8,1(± 7,249 735 101 76	6,991 6,234 603 92 62	1,170 1,015 132 9 14	8,562 7,479 782 201 100	7,243 6,310 651 193 89	1,319 1,169 131 8 11	
Population, end of year	5,525	4,725	800	5,301	4,472	829	
Net change during year	117	-129	12	-224	253	29	

### 1974 and 1975

\* Other court orders as unfit, writs, reversals of judgment.

CHART T CALIFORNIA AND OUTPATIENT POPULATION, CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER 1965 THROUGH 1975 THOUSANDS THOUSANDS 30,000 30,000 25,000 25,000 20,000 20,000 CALIFORNIA POPULATION 15,000 15,000 10,000 6.0 5.5 5.0 4.5 4.0 3.5 5,000 3.0 2,5 OUTPATIENT POPULATION 2.0 2.0 1.5 1.5 1.0 1.0 1971 1973 1974 1975 1965 1966 1967 1968 1969 1970 1972

AND ALL AND

OUTPATIENT POPULATION

### TABLE 25A

# TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

	19	74	1975		
Type of charge	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	
Total	4,725	100.0	4,472	100.0	
Felony charge Misdemeanor charge No criminal charge	4,314 327 84	$\begin{array}{c} 91.3\\ 6.9\\ 1.8\end{array}$	4,159 268 45	93.0 6.0 1.0	

### TABLE 25B

# TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

	19	74	1975		
Type of Charge	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	
Total	800	100.0	829	100.0	
Felony charge Misdemeanor charge No criminal charge	664 129 7	83.0 16.1 0.9	673 153 3	81.2 18.4 0.4	

# OUTPATIENT POPULATION

### TABLE 26A

# OFFENSE BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

	Te	otal	Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge	
Offense	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
		74				
Total	- 4,641 - 1,801 - 304 - 217 - 135 - 1,780 - 376	100.0 38.8 6.5 4.7 2.9 38.4 5.1 0.6	4,314 1,790 288 205 	100.0 41.5 6.7 4.7 	327 11 16 12 135 112 13 28	100.0 3.3 4.9 3.7 41.3 34.3 3.9 8.6

### 1975

Total	4,472					1
No criminal charge	45					100 A.S.
Total charged	4,427	100.0	4,159	100.0	268	100.0
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemeanor (controlled sub. & marij.)	1,727 246 181 95	$39.0 \\ 5.6 \\ 4.1 \\ 2.1$	1,718 235 167	41.3 5.7 4.0	9 11 14 95	$3.4 \\ 4.1 \\ 5.2 \\ 35.4$
Crimes against property Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	1,761 398 19	39.8 9.0 0.4	1,647 392 	39.6 9.4 	114 6 19	$42.6 \\ 2.2 \\ 7.1$

\* Controlled Substances Schedules.

### TABLE 26B

OFFENSE

BY TYPE OF CHARGE

WOMEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS

December 31, 1974 and 1975

	Tc	tal	Felony	charge	Misdemeanor charge	
Offense	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
	19	74			· · · · · · · ·	
Total No criminal charge	800 7					
Total charged	793	100.0	664	100.0	129	100.0
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemeanor (controlled sub, & marij.)	328 59 25 46	$41.1 \\ 7.4 \\ 3.2 \\ 5.8$	324 51 24 	48.8 7.7 3.6	2 8 1 46	$1.5 \\ 6.2 \\ 0.8 \\ 35.7$
Crimes against property Otier felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	28	$36.3 \\ 3.5 \\ 2.7$	239 26 	36.0 3.9 	49 2 21	$38.0 \\ 1.6 \\ 16.2$
	19;	75	· · · ·			
Total	829					
No criminal charge	3			e a stational de la companya de la c		£1
Total charged	826	100.0	673	100.0	153	100.0
CSS* I & II (outste)	21	$38.6 \\ 7.2 \\ 2.5 \\ 6.1$	316 52 19 	47.0 7.7 2.8 	3 7 2 50	$1.9 \\ 4.6 \\ 1.3 \\ 32.7$
Crimes against property Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	31	39.3 3.8 2.5	257 29	38.2 4.3	68 2 21	$\begin{array}{r} 44.5\\1.3\\13.7\end{array}$

\* Controlled Substances Schedules.

### OUTPATIENT POPULATION

### TABLE 27A

# LOCATION OF OUTPATIENT SUPERVISION BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

Location	To	Total		Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge		No criminal charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	
		197	4						
Total	4,725	100.9	4,314	100.0	327	100.0	84	100.0	
California Southern counties Northern counties	4,643 2,769 1,874	08.3 58.0 39.7	4,239 2,469 1,770	63.3 57.3 41.0	320 223 97	97.9 68.2 29.7	84 77 7	100.0 91.7 8.3	
Out of State or custody	82	1.7	75	1.7	7	2.1			
		197	5					•	
Total	4,472	100.0	4,159	100.0	298	100.0	45	100.0	
California Southern counties Northern counties	4,372 2,556 1,816	97.8 57.2 40.6	4,061 2,344 1,717	97.7 56.4 41.3	266 170 96	99.2 63.4 35.8	45 42 3	100.0 93.3 6.7	
Out of State or custody	100	2.2	98	2.3	2	0.8	ана. 1911 — — П		

### TABLE 27B

# LOCATION OF OUTPATIENT SUPERVISION BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

	Location	Total Felony o		charge	Misdemeanor charge		No crimi- nal charge	
		Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
			19	74	<b>.</b>	· · ·		<b>-</b>

Tota!	800	100,0	664	100,0	129	100.0	7
California Southern counties Northern counties	514 64.3	99.3 64.3 35.0	64.3 405		99,1         129           61.0         103           38.1         26	100.0 79.8 20.2	7 6 1
Out of State or custody	÷ ¢	0.7	6	0,9	- <b>-</b> -		
		1975	5	<u></u>			

the second s							
Total	829	100.0	673	100.0	153	100,0	3
California Southern counties Northern counties	816 530 286	98.4 63.9 34.5	663 430 233	98.5 63.9 34.6	150 98 52	98,0 64,0 34.0	3 2 1
Out of State or custody	13	1.6	10	1,5	3	2,0	

# TABLE 28A

# ETHNIC GROUP BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

Ethnic group	To	tal		ony .rge	Misder cha	neanor rge	No cri cha	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
		197	4		•			
Total White White, Mexican descent Black Other	4,725 2,222 1,471 996 36	100.0 47.0 31.1 21.1 0.8	4,314 2,032 1,310 941 31	100.0 47.1 30.4 21.8 0.7	327 167 123 32 5	100.0 51.1 37.6 9.8 1.5	84 23 38 23 	100.0 27.4 45.2 27.4 
		197	5					
Total White White, Mexican descent Black Other	4,472 2,C89 1,390 953 40	100.0 46.7 31.1 21.3 0.9	4,159 1,935 1,276 915 33	100.0 46.5 30.7 22.0 0.8	268 139 97 25 7	100.0 51.9 36.2 9.3 2.6	45 15 17 13 	100.0 33.3 37.8 28.9

### TABLE 28B

# ETHNIC GROUP BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

2	Ethnic group	То	Total		charge	Misdemea	No crimi- nal charge	
		Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
			19	74				

1	9	7	4	

Total	800	100.0	664	100.0	129	100,0	7
White	457 139 194 10	57.1 17.4 24.3 1.2	377 112 165 10	$56.8 \\ 16.9 \\ 24.8 \\ 1.5$	73 27 29	$56.6 \\ 20.9 \\ 22.5$	7 

# 1975

Total White White, Mexican descent Black	829 446 149 218	100.0 53.8 18.0 26.3	673 363 118 179	100.0 54.0 17.5 26.6	153 80 31 39	100.0 52.3 20.3 25.5	3 3 
Other	16	1.9	13	1.9	3	1.9	

### OUTPATIENT POPULATION

### TABLE 29A

# TIMES IN OUTPATIENT STATUS BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

Times in outpatient status	Total		Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge		No criminal charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
		197	4		·			
Total	4,725	100.0	4,314	100.0	327	100.0	84	100.0
First time as outpatient Second time as outpatient Third or more times as outpatient	2,439 1,230 1,056	51.6 26.1 22.3	2,240 1,110 964	$51.9 \\ 25.7 \\ 22.4$	167 92 65	51.1 28.1 20.8	32 28 24	38.1 33.3 28.6
		197	<i>'</i> 5					•••••••
Total	4,472	100.0	4,159	100.0	268	100.0	45	100.0

#### TABLE 29B

 $52.1 \\ 25.0 \\ 22.9$ 

2,157 1,039 963  ${}^{51.8}_{25.0}_{23.2}$ 

155 63 50  $57.8 \\ 23.5 \\ 18.7$ 

16 18 11  $35.6 \\ 40.0 \\ 24.4$ 

2,328 1,120 1,024

First time as outpatient\_\_\_\_\_ Second time as outpatient\_\_\_\_\_ Third or more times as outpatient.

# TIMES IN OUTPATIENT STATUS BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

Times in outpatient status	Total	Felony charge	Misdemeanor charge	No crimi- nal charge
	Number Percent	Number Percent	Number Percent	Number

1974

and the second		1. S. 1. S					
Total	800	100.0	664	100.0	129	100.0	7
First time as outpatient Second time as outpatient Third or more times as outpatient	471 183 146	58.8 22.9 18.3	404 147 113	60.9 22.1 17.0	65 32 32	50.4 24.8 24.8	2 4 1

Total 829	100.0	673	100.0	153	100,0	3
First time as outpatient 465 Second time as outpatient203 Third or more times as outpatient161	$56.1 \\ 24.5 \\ 19.4$	377 165 131	56.0 24.5 19.5	87 36 30	$56.9 \\ 23.5 \\ 19.6$	1 2

60

### TABLE 30A

# LENGTH OF TIME IN PRESENT OUTPATIENT STATUS BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

Length of time	Total		Felony charge		Misdemeanor charge		No criminal charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
		197	4		•	· · ·		ing. Ser
Total Less than 1 year 1 year but less than 2 2 years but less than 3 3 years or more	4,725 2,125 1,254 022 724	100.0 45.0 26.5 13.2 15.3	4,314 1,989 1,145 558 623	100.0 46.1 26.6 12.9 14.4	327 122 93 53 59	100.0 37.3 28.4 16.2 18.1	84 15 16 11 42	100.0 17.9 19.0 13.1 50.0
		197	5					
Total Less than 1 year 1 year but less than 2 2 years but less than 3 3 years or more	4,472 2,095 1,040 623 714	100.0 46.8 23.3 13.5 16.0	4,159 1,083 973 572 631	100.0 47.7 23.4 13.7 15.2	268 104 59 46 59	100.0 38.8 22.0 17.2 22.0	45 8 8 5 24	100.0 17.8 17.8 11.1 53.3

### TABLE 30B

# LENGTH OF TIME IN PRESENT OUTPATIENT STATUS BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN IN OUTPATIENT STATUS December 31, 1974 and 1975

Length of time	f timeTotal		Felony	charge	Misdemea	No crimi- nal charge	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number

Total	800	100.0	664	100.0	129	100.0	7
Less than 1 year 1 year but less than 2 2 years but less than 3 3 years or more	356 219 117 108	$44.5 \\ 27.4 \\ 14.6 \\ 13.5$	302 177 99 80	$45.5 \\ 26.7 \\ 14.9 \\ 12.9$	52 30 17 91	40.3 30.2 13.2 16.3	2 3 1 1

1975

'Total	829	100.0	673	100.0	153	100.0	3
Less than 1 year 1 year but less than 2 2 years but less than 3 3 years or more	389 199 131 110	$ \begin{array}{r} 46.9\\ 24.0\\ 15.8\\ 13.3 \end{array} $	312 169 101 91	$46.4 \\ 25.1 \\ 15.0 \\ 13.5$	76 29 20 19	49.6 19.0 19.0 12.4	1 1 1

### OUTPATIENT POPULATION

### TABLE 31A

# MEDIAN TIME IN OUTPATIENT STATUS BEFORE SUSPENSION BY TYPE OF CHARGE MEN SUSPENDED FOR THE FIRST TIME 1967 through 1975

	Tot	al	Felony	charge	Misdemean	or charge	No criminal charge		
Year during which suspended	Number	Median time in months	Number	Median time in months	Number	Median time in months	Number	Median time in months	
1967 1068 1969 1970	1,793 2,094 2,280 2,488	4 3 4 4	1,382 1,548 1,718 1,904	4 4 4 4	285 288 292 279	3 3 4 4	126 258 270 305	3 2 3 4	
1971 1972 1973 1974	3,152 3,425 3,354 2,958	5 6 4 4	2,490 2,949 3,036 2,734	5 6 4 4	314 289 239 190	6 6 4 4	348 187 70 34	5 7 6 3	
1975	2,943	4	2,758	4	170	4	15	4	

#### TABLE 31B

# MEDIAN TIME IN OUTPATIENT STATUS BEFORE SUSPENSION BY TYPE OF CHARGE WOMEN SUSPENDED FOR THE FIRST TIME 1967 through 1975

	Total		Felony	charge	Mîsdemea	nor charge	No criminal charge		
Year during which suspended	Number	Median time in months	Number	Median time in months	Number	Median time în months	Number	Median time in months	
1967 1968 1969 1970	282 281 352 347	3 3 4 5	189 190 236 237	3 3 4 5	70 60 74 80	2.5 2 4 3	23 31 42 30	1 3 4 4	
1971 1972 1973 1974	396 432 429 474	6 4 3 3	279 337 329 380	$\begin{array}{c} 6\\ 5\\ 4\\ 8.5 \end{array}$	81 75 89 88	4 3 3 3	36 20 11 6	5 4 	
1975	498	3	407	3	89	3	2		

Note: Median computed for 15 or more cases.

# TABLE 32A OUTPATIENTS SUSPENDED FOR THE FIRST TIME

BY COHORT YEAR OF RELEASE

California Supervised Cases Only

CUMULATIVE PERCENTAGE

MEN

1967 through 1975

Year during which suspended	1967	1968	1969	1970	1971	1072	1973	1974	1975
Number released to out- patient status	2,115	2,507	2,766	3,505	4,085	3,204	3,592	2,942	3,155
Year of release	55.2 85.5 89.4 90.1 91.3 91.3	52.5 83.5 88.6 89.0 89.7 89.7	47.6 81.4 87.2 88.2 88.4 88.5	39.0 79.7 85.8 87.1 87.3 87.3	37.9 80.0 87.1 88.0 88.1	45.0 85.3 89.3 90.1	48.4 S6.4 91.2	48.3 86.3	51.3

### TABLE 32B

### OUTPATIENTS SUSPENDED FOR THE FIRST TIME

BY COHORT YEAR OF RELEASE

California Supervised Cases Only

CUMULATIVE PERCENTAGE

WOMEN

1967 through 1975

Year during which suspended	1967	1968	1960	1970	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975
Number released to out- patient status Year of release Ist year after release 2nd year after release 3rd year after release 4th year after release 5th year after release	372 54.8 77.2 82.0 82.5 82.8 82.8 82.8	374 47.9 79.1 84.5 88.2 88.5 \$8.5	471 45.0 77.1 81.5 82.4 82.4 82.4 82.4	436 39.7 65.4 70.6 71.6 71.8 71.8 71.8	469 24.9 62.0 68.9 69.0 69.0	462 40.8 82.3 87.0 87.2	504 47.8 84.9 88.5	503 51.5 89.1	564 51.1

# TABLE 33

# OUTPATIENTS REINSTATED TO ACTIVE OUTPATIENT STATUS 1963 through 1975

Year	Total	Men	Women
1963	6 8 16 29 240 473 818 1,288 2,384 3,396 4,124 4,585 4,613	13           20           226           422           715           1,123           2,088           2,088           2,088           3,609           3,906           3,831	6 
#### OUTPATIENT POPULATION

#### TABLE 34A

# OUTPATIENTS RETURNED TO CENTER BY COHORT YEAR OF RELEASE CUMULATIVE PERCENTAGE

#### MEN

#### 1967 through 1975

Year o	f release			3	Cear of rel	ease from	institutio	n		
		1967	1968	1960	1970	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975
						···		1.1.1		·

Returned from outpatient status without or with a new civil narcotic commitment

Number	2,119	2,508	2,768	3,506	4,089	3,208	3,597	2,948	3,155
Percent	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100,0
Year of release 1st year after release 2nd year after release 3rd year after release 4th year after release 5th year after release	31.8 66.4 72.0 74.0 74.5 74.6	29.2 64.2 70.5 72.6 73.3 73.8	23.7 53.1 61.8 64.3 65.4 65.8	$     \begin{array}{r}       16.4 \\       43.3 \\       50.0 \\       54.7 \\       56.0 \\       56.5 \\       \end{array} $	13.7 40.0 51.8 55.2 56.8	17.6 47.4 55.0 58.4	19.7 47.4 56.8	16.6 46.0	22.2

#### Returned from outpatient status without a new civil narcotic commitment

Year of release 1st year after release	28.9 58.4	27.4 56.9	$\substack{21.9\\47.0}$	15.3 38.0	$12.2 \\ 34.5$	$\substack{16.3\\42.9}$	$\substack{18.1\\42.4}$	$\begin{array}{c} 15.5\\ 41.1\end{array}$	21.0
2nd year after release 3rd year after release 4th year after release 5th year after release	64.5 64.8	$     \begin{array}{r}       62.2 \\       64.1 \\       64.6 \\       65.1 \\     \end{array} $	54.2 56.3 57.2 57.5	43.8 47.4 48.5 49.0	44.8 ~7.8 49.2	49.1 52.1	50.6		
	1.1	1.		10 C 10	1	· ·	1. State 1. State		1.11

#### Returned from outpatient status with a new civil narcotic commitment

Year of release 1st year after release 2nd year after release 3rd year after release 4h year after release 5th year after release	8.0 9.3 9.5 9.7 9.7	7.3 8.3 8.5 8.7 8.7	6.1 7.6 8.0 8.2 8.3	5.3 6.8 7.3 7,5 7,5	5.5 7.0 7.4 7.8	4.5 5.9 6.3	5.0 6.2	4.9	
--	---------------------------------	---------------------------------	---------------------------------	---------------------------------	--------------------------	-------------------	------------	-----	--

#### CIVIL COMMITMENT PROGRAM FOR NARCOTIC ADDICTS

#### TABLE 34B

# OUTPATIENTS RETURNED TO CENTER BY COHORT YEAR OF RELEASE CUMULATIVE PERCENTAGE WOMEN

#### 1967 through 1975

Year of release	Year of release from institution											
	1967	1968	1969	1970	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975			

Returned from outpatient status without or with a new civil narcotic commitment

372 0.0	$\substack{374\\100.0}$	$471 \\ 100.0$	$\substack{438\\100.0}$	$\begin{array}{r} 471 \\ 100.0 \end{array}$	463 100.0	505 100.0	503 100.0	566 100.0
3.5 1.3 2.6 2.9	21.9 51.1 56.9 59.9 59.9	18.3 48.0 54.8 56.0 56.7	$15.3 \\ 37.7 \\ 44.8 \\ 50.2 \\ 51.1$	9.6 33.1 43.5 46.3 47.8	$14.0 \\ 35.6 \\ 43.2 \\ 48.6$	$12.5 \\ 38.4 \\ 48.9$	17.7 42.6	20.1
	0.0 3.1 3.5 1.3 2.6 2.9 2.9	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c cccccc} 3.1 & 21.9 & 18.3 \\ 3.5 & 51.1 & 48.0 \\ 1.3 & 56.9 & 54.8 \\ 2.6 & 59.9 & 56.0 \\ 2.9 & 59.9 & 56.7 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

Returned from outpatient status without a new civil narcotic commitment

Year of release	21.8 48.9 56.2 57.5	20.6 45.7 50.8 53.5	17.6 43.7 50.1 51.1	$     \begin{array}{r}         14.4 \\         34.9 \\         41.1 \\         46.3 \\         46.3         \end{array} $	9,2 30.8 40,1 41.8	$12.3 \\ 30.2 \\ 36.9 \\ 42.1$	11.3 36.2 45.1	17.1 38.6	19.2
4th year after release 5th year after release	57.8 57.8	53.5 53.5	$51.8 \\ 52.6$	47.0 47.5	43.1			·	

Returned from outpatient status with a new civil narcotic commitment

Year of release lst year after release 2nd year after release 3rd year after release 4th year after release 6th year after release	1.3 4.0 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1	$     \begin{array}{r}       1.3 \\       5.4 \\       6.1 \\       6.4 \\       6.4 \\       6.4     \end{array} $	$0.7 \\ 4.3 \\ 4.7 \\ 4.9 $	$0.9 \\ 2.8 \\ 3.7 \\ 3.9 \\ 4.1 \\ 4.1$	$0.4 \\ 2.3 \\ 3.4 \\ 4.5 \\ 4.7$	$     \begin{array}{r}       1.7 \\       5.4 \\       6.3 \\       6.5     \end{array} $	1.2 2.2 3.8	0.6	0.9
		1 1 1	1				1. The second	1.1.1.1.1.1.1	



OUTPATIENT POPULATION

ଫ

## TABLE 35A

# DISPOSITION OF PERSONS PLACED IN OUTPATIENT STATUS BY COHORT YEAR OF RELEASE 1970-1975

MEN As of December 31, 1975

					Year of	release to	outpatien	t status				
Slatus	19	1970		1971		1972		73	1974		1975	
n de services de la construcción de Construcción de la construcción de l	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Number released to outpatient status	3,506	100.0	4,089	100.0	3,208	100.0	3,597	100.0	2,948	100.0	3,155	100.0
Status as of December 31, 1975				n an linn An linn					1.00			
Active outpatient status	100 15 1,981 711	$2.9 \\ 0.4 \\ 56.5 \\ 20.3$	248 29 2,324 756	6.1 0.7 56.8 18.5	340 51 1,872 387	$10.6 \\ 1.6 \\ 58.4 \\ 12.1$	623 127 2.045 247	$17.3 \\ 3.5 \\ 56.9 \\ 6.9$	1,040 204 1,357 48	35.3 6.9 46.0 1.6	2,095 275 700 26	66.4 8.7 22.2 0.8
Returned to court for discharge—felons and misdemeanants Discharged by Department of Corrections—no criminal charge	400 311	11.4 8.9	489 267	12.0 6.5	276 111	8.6 3.5	153 94	$\begin{array}{c} 4.3\\ 2.6\end{array}$	1 47	1.6	26	0.8
Discharged without completing program Writ (Habeas Corpus) Committed to prison with new felony commitment Other court order dischargo Died	. 2	17.4 0.1 6.2 11.1 2.5	633 1 292 340 99	15.5 7.2 8.3 2.4	467 1 231 235 91	14.5 7.2 7.3 2.8	489 255 234 66	13.6 7.1 6.5 1.8	242 147 95 57	8,2 5.0 3.2 2.0	38 33 5 21	1.2 1.0 0.2 0.7

• Men in suspended status.

10

#### TABLE 35B

# DISPOSITION OF PERSONS PLACED IN OUTPATIENT STATUS BY COHORT YEAR OF RELEASE 1970-1975

WOMEN

# As of December 31, 1975

			•		Year of	release to	outpatier	t status				
Slatus	19	70	19	71	19	72	19	73	19	74	19	75
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Number released to outpatient status	438	100.0	471	100.0	463	100.0	505	100.0	503	100.0	566	100,0
Status as of December 31, 1975						a ju kis						
Active outpatient status Inactive outpatient status Returned to California Rehabilitation Center Successfully completed program	$11 \\ 2 \\ 226 \\ 120$	$2.5 \\ 0.5 \\ 51.6 \\ 27.4$	33 4 225 149	7.0 0.9 47.8 31.6	62 9 225 93	13.4 1.9 48.6 20.1	131 20 247 47	25.9 4.0 48.9 9.3	199 51 214 6	39.6 10.1 42.5 1.2	389 54 114 3	68.7 9.5 20.2 0.5
Returned to court for discharge—felons and misdemeasants Discharged by Department of Corrections—no criminal charge	75 45	$\substack{17.1\\10.3}$	102 47	$\substack{21.6\\10.0}$	71 22	15.3 4.8	32 15	$\begin{array}{c} 6.3 \\ 3.0 \end{array}$	1 5	$\begin{array}{c} 0.2\\ 1.0 \end{array}$		0.5
Discharged without completing program Writ (Habeas Corpus) Committed to prison with new felony commitment Other court order discharge	1 1	$15.5 \\ 0.2 \\ 1.1 \\ 14.2$	51 12 39	10.8 2.5 8.3	63 2 15 46	13.6 0.4 3.2 10.0	51 12 39	10.1 2.4 7.7	24 - 9 15	4.8 1.8 3.0	2 1 1	0,4 0,2 0,2
Died	11	2.5	9	1.9	11	2.4	9	1.8	9	1.8	4	0,7

• Women in suspended status.

OUTPATIENT POPULATION

# COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTERS

Selected civil narcotic addict outpatients were placed in community correctional centers located in urban areas. Outpatients received in the centers may have been committed directly from the institution, from independent residence, from some limited custody situation, or for assistance in medical needs. Residents were required to pay for room and board, if possible, attend school or obtain employment, and gradually resume independent living.

The Department of Corrections operated Rupert Crittenden Center and Vinewood Center during 1974 and 1975, closed Parkway Center during 1974, and opened Sacramento Valley Center during 1975. Only the Vinewood Center was for women narcotic addict outpatients. Statistical information pertaining to the demographic characteristics, movement, and length of stay of outpatients in the centers are shown in the Appendix.

# LIST OF TABLES

	INSTITUTION POPULATION AND MOVEMENT	
Table 1	Pa Institution Population, California Rehabilitation Center Program, December 31, 1961 through 1975	age 3
2	Institution Population and Movement, California Rehabilitation Center Program, 1974 and 1975	
CIVIL NA	RCOTIC ADDICTS ADMITTED TO CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTE	R
3	Number Admitted Each Year, by Type of Charge, Percentage Distribution and Commitment Rate, 1965 through 1975	7
4A—1974	Offense by Type of Charge, Men Admitted, 1974	8
4A-1975	Offense by Type of Charge, Men Admitted, 1975	9
4B—1974	Offense by Type of Charge, Women Admitted, 1974	11
4B—1975	Offense by Type of Charge, Women Adnatted, 1975	12
5	Commitment Rates, by Geographic Areas, Men and Women Admitted, 1974 and 1975	14
6A	Ethnic Group, by Type of Charge, Men Admitted, 1974 and 1975	15
6B	Ethnic Group, by Type of Charge, Women Admitted, 1974 and 1975	15
7A	Median Age at Admission, Men Admitted, 1962 through 1975	
7B	Median Age at Admission, Women Admitted, 1962 through 1975	16
8A	Age at Admission, by Type of Charge, Men Admitted, 1974 and 1975	17
8B	Age at Admission, by Type of Charge, Women Admitted, 1974 and 1975	
9A	Educational Achievement, by Type of Charge, Men Admitted, 1974 and 1975	19
9B	Educational Achievement, by Type of Charge, Women Admitted, 1974 and 1975	20
10A	Time in State Before Commitment on Current Charge, by Type of Charge, Men Admitted, 1974 and 1975	21
10B	Time in State Before Commitment on Current Charge, by Type of Charge, Women Admitted, 1974 and 1975	22
11A	Age First Known Arrest Including Present Arrest, by Type of Charge, Men Admitted, 1974 and 1975	23
11B	Age First Known Arrest Including Present Arrest, by Type of Charge, Women Admitted, 1974 and 1975	24
12A	Prior Criminal Commitment(s) Served, by Type of Charge, Men Admitted, 1974 and 1975	25
12B	Prior Criminal Commitment(s) Served, by Type of Charge, Women Admitted, 1974 and 1975	26
13A	Prior Prison Commitment(s) Served, by Type of Charge, Men Admitted, 1974 and 1975	27
13B	Prior Prison Commitment(s) Served, by Type of Charge, Women Admitted, 1974 and 1975	28

# LIST OF TABLES—Continued

# CHARACTERISTICS OF RESIDENTS IN CALIFORNIA REHABILITATION CENTER INSTITUTION PROGRAM

Table		Page
14A	Type of Charge, Men in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	30
14B	Type of Charge, Women in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	30
15A	Offense, by Type of Charge, Men in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	31
15B	Offense, by Type of Charge, Women in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	33
16A	Area of Commitment by Type of Charge, Men in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	35
16B	Area of Commitment by Type of Charge, Women in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	35
17 <b>A</b>	Ethnic Group, by Type of Charge, Men in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	36
17B	Ethnic Group, by Type of Charge, Women in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	36
18A	Age in Years, by Type of Charge, Men in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	37
18B	Age in Years, by Type of Charge, Women in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	38
19A	Prior Criminal Commitment(s) Served, by Type of Charge, Men in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	40
19 <b>B</b>	Prior Criminal Commitment(s) Served, by Type of Charge, Women in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	40
.20 <b>A</b>	Status With Reference to Outpatient Experience, by Type of Charge, Men in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	41
20B	Status With Reference to Outpatient Experience, by Type of Charge, Women in Institution Program, December 31, 1974 and 1975	41
	CIVIL NARCOTIC ADDICTS RELEASED FROM THE INSTITUTION	
21 <b>A</b>	Method of Release, by Type of Charge, Men Released From Institution, 1974 and 1975	43
21B	Method of Release, by Type of Charge, Women Released From Institution, 1974 and 1975	44
22A	Median Time in Residence Before Last Release, Type of Release and Type of Charge, Men Released to Outpatient Status, 1969 through 1975	45
22B	Median Time in Residence Before Last Release, Type of Release and Type of Charge, Women Released to Outpatient Status, 1969 through 1975	47
23A	Offense and Median Time in Residence, Men Released to Out- patient Status for the First Time, 1974 and 1975	49
23B	Offense and Median Time in Residence, Women Released to Out- patient Status for the First Time, 1974 and 1975	49

# LIST OF TABLES—Continued OUTPATIENT POPULATION

Table		Page
24	Movement in Outpatient Status, 1974 and 1975	
25A	Type of Charge, Men in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	54
25B	Type of Charge, Women in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	
26A	Offense, by Type of Charge, Men in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	55
26B	Offense, by Type of Charge, Women in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	56
27A	Location of Outpatient Supervision, by Type of Charge, Men in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	57
27B	Location of Outpatient Supervision, by Type of Charge, Women in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	57
28A	Ethnic Group, by Type of Charge, Men in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	58
28B	Ethnic Group, by Type of Charge, Women in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	58
29A	Times in Outpatient Status, by Type of Charge, Men in Out- patient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	59
29B	Times in Outpatient Status, by Type of Charge, Women in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	59
30A	Length of Time in Present Outpatient Status, by Type of Charge, Men in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	60
30B	Length of Time in Present Outpatient Status, by Type of Charge, Women in Outpatient Status, December 31, 1974 and 1975	60
31A	Median Time in Outpatient Status Before Suspension, by Type of Charge, Men Suspended for the First Time, 1967 through 1975	61
31B	Median Time in Outpatient Status Before Suspension, by Type of Charge, Women Suspended for the First Time, 1967 through 1975	61
32A	Outpatients Suspended for the First Time, by Cohort Year of Release, California Supervised Cases Only, Cumulative Percentage, Men, 1967 through 1975	62
32B	Outpatients Suspended for the First Time, by Cohort Year of Release, California Supervised Cases Only, Cumulative Percentage, Women, 1967 through 1975	62
33	Outpatients Reinstated to Active Oupatient Status, 1963 through 1975	
34A	Outpatients Returned to Center, by Cohort Year of Release, Cumulative Percentage, Men, 1967 through 1975	63
34B	Outpatients Returned to Center, by Cohort Year of Release, Cumulative Percentage, Women, 1967 through 1975	64
35A	Disposition of Persons Placed in Outpatient Status, by Cohort Year of Release 1970–1975, Men, as of December 31, 1975	
35B	Disposition of Persons Placed in Outpatient Status, by Cohort Year of Release 1970–1975, Women, as of December 31, 1975	

# LIST OF TABLES—Continued

Table		Page
I	Population by Institution, December 31, 1974 and 1975	77
II A	Offense Groups, Men Admitted, 1965 through 1975	78–79
II B	Offense Groups, Women Admitted, 1965 through 1975	80–81
III-1974	Area and County of Commitment, Men and Women Admitted, 1974	82–83
III-1975	Area and County of Commitment, Men and Women Admitted, 1975	84-85
IV	Offense Groups, Men and Women in Institution Program, December 31, 1970 through 1975	86
V	Offense Groups, Men and Women in Outpatient Program, December 31, 1970 through 1975	87
VI A	Population and Movement, Parkway Community Correctional Center, Men, 1971 through 1975	
VIA	Population and Movement, Rupert Crittenden Community Correctional Center, Men, 1971 through 1975	
VIA	Population and Movement, Sacramento Valley Community Correctional Center, Men, 1975	90
VIB	Population and Movement, Vinewood Community Correctional Center, Women, 1971 through 1975	91
VII A	Selected Characteristics, Community Correctional Centers, Men First Admitted, 1974 and 1975	9293
VII B	Selected Characteristics, Vinewood Community Correctional Center, Women First Admitted, 1974 and 1975	94–95
VIII A	Length of Stay, Community Correctional Centers, Men First Released, 1974 and 1975	
VIII B	Length of Stay, Vinewood Community Correctional Center, Women First Released, 1974 and 1975	97

# 73

# LIST OF CHARTS

Chart		Page
I	California and Institution Population, California Rehabili- tation Center, 1965 through 1975	
II A	Offense Groups Expressed in Percentages, Male Civil Narcotic Addicts Admitted to California Rehabilitation Center, 1969 through 1975	10
II B	Offense Groups Expressed in Percentages, Women Civil Narcotic Addicts Admitted to California Rehabilitation Center, 1969 through 1975	13
III A	Offense Charged, Percentage of Male Civil Narcotic Addicts at California Rehabilitation Center, December 31, 1969 through 1975	32
III B	Offense Charged, Percentage Distribution of Women Civil Narcotic Addicts at California Rehabilitation Center, December 31, 1969 through 1975	34
IV	Age, Percentage Distribution of Civil Narcotic Addicts at California Rehabilitation Center, December 31, 1974 and 1975	39
VA	Median Time in the Institution Before First Release to Out- patient Status, Male Civil Narcotic Addicts, 1970 through 1975	46
VВ	Median Time in the Institution Before First Release to Out- patient Status, Women Civil Narcotic Addicts, 1970 through 1975	48
VI	California and Outpatient Population, California Rehabilita- tion Center, 1965 through 1975	53
VII	Civil Narcotic Addicts Returned to California Rehabilitation Center Each Year After Belease in 1969 through 1975	







# APPENDIX

#### TABLE I

# POPULATION BY INSTITUTION December 31, 1974 and 1975

	Population as of	f December 31	Net change
Institution	1974	1975	1975 less 1974
Total population Total men California Institution for Men Institution Reception Center California Correctional Institution California Medical Facility Institution Reception Center California Rehabilitation CenterCorona Institution	28 43 10 8 2 1,681	2,138 1,863 53 1 52 41 19 2 17 1,750 1,702	108 101 25 1 24 2 9 8 15 5 69 60
Institution Camp Total women California Institution for Women Institution Reception Center California Rehabilitation Center—Patton	268 3	1,702 48 275 2 1 1 273	9 7 -1 -1 

D

		N	ENSE G EN ADM 5 throug	ROUPS							
Offenses	1965	1966	1967	1968	1969	1970	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975
			Numbe	r							
Total	913	1,085	1,428	1,555	1,981	1,974	2,186	1,872	1,832	1,776	1,525
No criminal charge	55	154	281	239	215	199	76	12	13	5	1
Total charged	858	931	1,147	1,316	1,760	1,775	2,110	1,860	1,819	1,771	1,523
RobberyAssaultBurglary	29 1 111	27 1 146	43 4 178	92 6 220	124 18 291	122 13 318	174 17 457	178 16 439	138 11 490	$153 \\ 26 \\ 442$	131 17 470
Theft except auto Auto theft Forgery and checks	43	49 18 58	77 21 64	102 29 99	140 35 113	143 35 150	$179 \\ 22 \\ 122$	190 36 138	183 19 143	198 19 129	151 24 107
CSS* I & II (opiato) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemeanor narcolics	367 3 110 113	346 9 117 134	403 24 164 128	400 55 151 121	599 146 166 88	583 178 111 77	711 229 109 48	582 127 59 44	623 75 66 39	613 61 56 41	502 31 31 23
Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	9 16	11 15	23 18	24 17	35 11	31 14	34 8	41 10	18 14	27 6	31 5

TABLE II A

CIVIL COMMITMENT PROCRAM FOR NARCOTIC ADDICTS

				- · ·	1		the second second				11 A.
Total charged	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Robbery Assault Burglary	$3.4 \\ 0.1 \\ 12.9$	2.9 0.1 15.7	$3.8 \\ 0.3 \\ 15.5$	7.0 0.5 16.7	7.0 1.0 16.5	6.9 0.7 17.9	8.2 0.8 21.7	9.6 0.9 23.6	7.6 0.7 26.9	$8.6 \\ 1.5 \\ 25.0$	
Theft except autoAuto theft Auto theft Forgery and checks	5.4 1.2 5.0	$5.3 \\ 1.9 \\ 6.2$	$6.7 \\ 1.8 \\ 5.6$	7.7 2.2 7.5	7.9 2.0 6.4	8.1 2.0 8.5	8.5 1.0 5.8	10.2 1.9 7.4	10.1 1.0 7.9	$     \begin{array}{c}             11.2 \\             1.1 \\             7.3         \end{array}     $	9,9 1,6 7,0
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* 1II, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemeanor narcotics	$42.8 \\ 0.3 \\ 12.8 \\ 13.2$	$37.1 \\ 1.0 \\ 12.6 \\ 14.4$	35.1 2.1 14.3 11.2	$30.4 \\ 4.2 \\ 11.5 \\ 9.2$	33.9 8.3 9.4 5.0	32.8 10.0 6.3 4.3	$33.7 \\ 10.8 \\ 5.1 \\ 2.3$	$31.3 \\ 6.8 \\ 3.2 \\ 2.4$	$34.2 \\ 4.1 \\ 3.0 \\ 2.1$	34.6 3.4 3.2 2.3	33.0 2.0 2.0 1.5
Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	$1.0\\1.9$	$\substack{1.2\\1.6}$	2.0 1.6	$\substack{1.8\\1.3}$	2.0 0.6	1.7 0.8	1.7 0.4	2.2 0.5	1.0 0.8	$\substack{1.5\\0.3}$	2,0 0.3

Percentage

#### Rate per 100,000 State population

Estimated State population in thousands	18,726	19,132	19,478	19,554	19,856	19,826	20,265	20,524	20,741	20,933	21,113
Total charged	4.58	4.87	5.89	6.73	8.89	8.95	10.42	9.06	8,77	8.46	7.21
Robbery Assault Burglary	0.15 ** 0.59	0.14 ••	0.22 ** 0.91	0.47 ** 1.12	0.62 0.09 1.46	0.62 ** 1.60	0.86 0.08 2.26	$     \begin{array}{c}       0.87 \\       0.08 \\       2.14     \end{array} $	0.67	$0.73 \\ 0.12 \\ 2.11$	$0.62 \\ 0.08 \\ 2.23$
Push except auto           As to theit           Forgery and checks	0,25 ** 0,23	0.26 0.09 0.30	$\begin{array}{c} 0.40 \\ 0.11 \\ 0.33 \end{array}$	$     \begin{array}{c}       0.52 \\       0.15 \\       0.51     \end{array} $	0.70 0.81 0.57	0.72 0.18 0.76	0.88 0.11 0.60	0.93 0.17 0.67	0.88 0.09 0.69	0.94 0.09 0.62	0.72 0.11 0.51
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemganor narcolics	1.96 ** 0.59 0.60	1.81 0.61 0.70	2.07 0.12 0.84 0.66	$2.05 \\ 0.28 \\ 0.77 \\ 0.62$	$3.02 \\ 0.73 \\ 0.84 \\ 0.44$	2.94 0.90 0.56 0.39	3.51 1.13 0.54 0.24	2.83 0.62 0.29 0.21	3.00 0.36 0.32 0.19	2.93 0.29 0,27 0.20	2.38 0.15 0.15 0.11
Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	0.08	** 0.08	$\substack{\textbf{0.12}\\\textbf{0.09}}$	0.12 0.09	0.18	0.16	0.17	0.20	0.09	0.13	0.15

Controlled Substances Schedules.
 Rates computed for offense groups with 15 or more admissions during the year.
 Note: Estimates of State population from State Department of Finance, Financial and Population Research Section publication.

in so.

APPENDIX

79

Ð,

# TABLE II B OFFENSE GROUPS WOMEN ADMITTED 1965 through 1975

						1. St.					
Offenses	1965	1966	1967	1968	1969	1970	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975
		· · · ·	Numbe	ŕ				6			
Total	143	146	217	228	264	251	269	253	328	300	298
No criminal chargo	8	31	34	37	29	22	11	5	4		2
Total charged	135	115	183	191	235	229	258	248	324	300	296
Robbery Assault Burghary	2 - 4		2 14	6 11	4 3 14	4 1 19	9 3 19	6 27	7 1 33	11 2 24	8 3 37
Theft except auto Auto theft Forgery and checks	12 3 23	12 19	17 1 30	17 1 29	24 1 37	16 1 36	26 46	25 1 46	52 60	39 1 73	39 56
CSS* I & IT (opiate) CSS* IU, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Miademeanor narcotics	45 1 11 25	38 1 10 26	52 10 18 28	60 7 17 38	94 14 17 17	82 28 9 27	101 25 6 14	93 25 6 11	123 20 5 12	109 14 5 11	114 5 2 25
Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	3 6	2 3	1 10	1 4	3 7	2 4	27	1 7	3 8	2 9	-7

CIVIL COMMITMENT PROGRAM FOR NARCOTIC ADDICTS

		ge

							<u> </u>	·			
Total charged	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
Robbery Assault Burglary	1.5 3.0	3.5	1.1 7.7	3.1 5.8	$1.7 \\ 1.3 \\ 6.0$	1.8 0.4 8.3	$3.5 \\ 1.2 \\ 7.4$	2,4	2.2 0.3 10.2	3.7 0.7 8.0	2.7 1.0 12.5
Theft except auto Auto theft Forgery and checks	8.9 2.2 17.0	10.4 16.5	9.3 0.5 16.4	$8.9 \\ 0.5 \\ 15.2$	10.2 0.4 15.7	7.0 0.4 15.7	10.1 17.8	10.1 0.4 18.5	16.1 18.5	13.0 0.3 24.3	13.2
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemeanor nareofics	33.3 0.7 8.2 18.5	33.0 0.9 8.7 22.6	28.4 5.5 9.8 15.3	31.4 3.7 8.9 19.9	$40.0 \\ 6.0 \\ 7.2 \\ 7.2 \\ 7.2$	$35.8 \\ 12.2 \\ 3.9 \\ 11.8$	39.1 9.7 2.3 5.4	37.5 10.1 2.4 4.4	37.9 6.2 1.5 3.7	$36.3 \\ 4.6 \\ 1.7 \\ 3.7$	$38.6 \\ 1.6 \\ 0.7 \\ 8.5$
Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	$\substack{\textbf{2.2}\\\textbf{4.5}}$	$\substack{1.8\\2.6}$	0.5 5.5	0.5 2.1	$\substack{\textbf{1.3}\\\textbf{3.0}}$	0.9 1.8	0.8 2.7	0.4 2.9	$\begin{array}{c} 0.9\\ 2.5\end{array}$	0.7 3.0	2.3

#### Rate per 100,000 State population

Estimated State population in thousands	18,726	19,132	19,478	19,554	19.856	19,826	20,265	20,524	20.741	20,933	21.113
Total charged	0.72	0.60	0.94	0.98	1.18	1.16	1.27	1.21	1.56	1.43	1.40
Robbery			**		••	**	**	**	**	••	••
AssaultBurglary	77	77	0.07	0.06	0.07	** 0.10	0.09	0,13	0.16	0.12	0.18
Theft except auto	** .	**	(1.09	0.09	0.12	0.08	0,13	0,12	0.25	0.19	0.19
Auto theft Forgery and checks	0.12	0.10	0.15	0.15	0.19	0.18	0.23	0,22	0.29	0,34	0.27
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs)	0.24	0.20	0.27	0.31	0.47	0,41 0.14	0.50	0,45 0,12	0.59 0.10	0.52	0.54
Marijuana Misdemeanor narcoties	0.13	0.14	0.09 0.14	0.09 0.19	0.09 0.09	0.14	**	**	## ##	**	** 0.12
Other felony offenses	**	**	**	**	**			44	44	••	
Other misdemeanor offenses		**		•	1		••	<b>**</b>	**	**	••

Controlled Substances Schedules.
 Rates computed for offense groups with 15 or more admissions during the year.
 Note: Estimates of State population from State Department of Finance, Financial and Population Research Section publication.

12

# TABLE III-1974 AREA AND COUNTY OF COMMITMENT MEN AND WOMEN ADMITTED

			М	en			Women				Rate per 100,000 population			
Area and county	Total	Total	Felony	Misde- meanor	No criminal charge	Total	Felony	Misde- meanor	No criminal charge	Total	Men	Women	County population in thousands	
Total	2,076	1,776	1,655	116	5	300	246	54		9.92	8.49	1.43	20,933.0	
Southern Callfornia Los Angeles Imperial Orange Riverside San Bernardino San Diego San Luie Obispo San Luie Obispo Santa Barbara Ventura	51 84 260	1,054 525 18 56 33 47 74 207 15 25 54	970 501 17 51 32 40 65 179 13 24 48	81 22 1 5 1 7 9 28 1 1 6	3 2 	193 77 3 22 1 4 10 53 2 13 8	$156 \\ 69 \\ 3 \\ 16 \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ 10 \\ 36 \\ 1 \\ 12 \\ 5$	37 8 		$\begin{array}{r} 9.90\\ 8.65\\ 26.05\\ 22.87\\ 2.05\\ 10.01\\ 11.96\\ 24.53\\ 13.79\\ 13.58\\ 14.55\end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 8.37\\ 7.54\\ 22.33\\ 16.42\\ 1.99\\ 9.22\\ 10.54\\ 19.53\\ 12.17\\ 8.94\\ 12.68\end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 1.53\\ 1.11\\ 3.72\\ 6.45\\ 0.06\\ 0.79\\ 1.42\\ 5.00\\ 1.62\\ 4.64\\ 1.87\end{array}$	$12,590.3 \\ 6,961.2 \\ 80.6 \\ 341.1 \\ 1,656.3 \\ 509.6 \\ 702.5 \\ 1,509.9 \\ 123.3 \\ 279.8 \\ 426.0$	
San Francisco Bay Area San Francisco Contra Costa Marin Napa San Mateo Santa Clara Solano Sonoma	$     \begin{array}{r}       145 \\       69 \\       77 \\       5 \\       22 \\       76 \\       19 \\     \end{array} $	9 10	369 127 63 63 5 19 65 9 10 8	$     \begin{array}{r}             14 \\             3 \\             4 \\           $		$     53     14     2     14      \overline{-8}     10     4     1   $	$ \begin{array}{r} 47\\ 11\\ 2\\ 13\\\\ -\overline{6}\\ 10\\ 4\\ 1 \end{array} $	6 3 1  2 		$\begin{array}{r} 9.03\\ 21.35\\ 6.29\\ 13.14\\ 2.33\\ 25.32\\ 13.25\\ 1.61\\ 7.58\\ 4.21\\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 7.94\\ 19.29\\ 6.11\\ 10.75\\ 2.33\\ 25.32\\ 11.85\\ 0.76\\ 5.41\\ 3.79\end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 1.09\\ 2.06\\ 0.18\\ 2.39\\ 0.0\\ 0.0\\ 1.40\\ 0.85\\ 2.17\\ 0.42\\ \end{array}$	4,838.7 379.2 1,096.9 585.9 214.7 86.9 573.7 1,178.9 184.7 237.8	

Balance of State	392	338	316	21	1	54	43	11	 11.19	9.65	1.54	3,504.0
Sacramento Valley counties Butte Colusa Placer Sacramento Shasta Yolo Yuba	102 4 1 4 74 4 7 8	85 4 1 2 63 3 5 7	79 4 1 2 59 3 3 7	5  -3 -2 	1	$   \begin{array}{r} 17 \\ \\ -2 \\ 11 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 1 \end{array} $	14  -2 9 1 1 1	3  -2 -1 	$\begin{array}{r} 8.29 \\ 3.48 \\ 8.00 \\ 4.46 \\ 10.83 \\ 4.65 \\ 6.71 \\ 18.10 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{r} 6.91 \\ 3.48 \\ 8.00 \\ 2.23 \\ 9.22 \\ 3.49 \\ 4.79 \\ 15.84 \end{array}$	$ \begin{array}{r} 1,38 \\ \\ 2,\overline{23} \\ 1.61 \\ 1.16 \\ 1.92 \\ 2.26 \\ \end{array} $	$1,230.2 \\ 115.0 \\ 12.5 \\ 89.8 \\ 683.1 \\ 86.0 \\ 104.4 \\ 44.2$
San Joaquin Valley counties Fresno Madera Merced San Joaquin Stanislaus Tulare	206 87 9 8 12 20 31 39	176 75 7 6 11 15 26 36	162 67 7 6 11 15 25 31	14 8   1 5		30 12 2 2 1 5 5 3	25 8 2 2 1 5 5 2	5 4   1	$14.82 \\ 19.71 \\ 12.95 \\ 17.70 \\ 16.16 \\ 6.63 \\ 14.72 \\ 19.15 \\ 19.15 \\ 14.82 \\ 19.15 \\ 14.82 \\ 19.15 \\ 10.11$	12.66 16.99 10.07 13.28 9.31 4.97 12.35 17.67	$\begin{array}{c} 2.16\\ 2.72\\ 2.88\\ 4.42\\ 0.85\\ 1.60\\ 2.37\\ 1.48\end{array}$	1,390.1 441.4 69.5 45.2 118.1 301.6 210.6 203.7
Other counties Del Norte El Dorado Humboldt Jake Mendocino Monterey Nevada Santa Cruz Siskiyou Trinity Tuolumne	84 1 5 1 1 3 4 1 38 6 19 1 2 2	77 1 5 1 1 3 4 1 33 6 17 1 2 2	75 1 5 1 1 3 4 1 31 6 17 1 2 2			7 	4	3 	$\begin{array}{c} 9.51\\ 6.45\\ 9.38\\ 0.06\\ 5.92\\ 12.71\\ 7.04\\ 14.08\\ 14.54\\ 19.23\\ 13.14\\ 2.84\\ 21.74\\ 7.81\end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 8.72\\ 6.45\\ 9.38\\ 0.96\\ 5.92\\ 12.71\\ 7.04\\ 14.08\\ 12.63\\ 19.23\\ 11.76\\ 2.84\\ 21.74\\ 7.81\\ \end{array}$	0.79 	863.7 15.5 63.3 103.7 16.9 23.6 56.8 7.1 261.2 31.2 144.6 35.2 9.2 25.6

요리 가장 같

Note: Estimates of State population from Department of Finance, Financial and Population Research Section publication, Population in area total includes counties from which no person was committed.

# TABLE III-1975 AREA AND COUNTY OF COMMITMENT MEN AND WOMEN ADMITTED 1975

			М	en			Wo	men		Rate pe	r 100,000 po	pulation	
Area and county	Total	Total	Felony	Misde- meanor	No criminal charge	Total	Felony	Misde- meanor	No criminal charge	Total	Men	Women	County population in thousands
Total	1,822	1,524	1,423	100	1	298	237	59	2	8.63	7.22	1.41	21,113.0
Southern California Los Angeles Imperial Kern Orange Niverside San Bernardino San Diego San Luis Obispo Sant Luis Obispo Sant Barbara Yentura	15 66 52 50 73 156 8	45 44 59 132 8 15	720 375 13 47 44 34 50 119 8 14 16	$51 \\ 9 \\ 1 \\ 4 \\ 10 \\ 9 \\ 13 \\ - \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ - \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ - \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ - \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ - \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ - \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ - \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1$		$ \begin{array}{c} 159\\ 88\\ 1\\ 15\\ 7\\ 6\\ 14\\ 24\\\\ 1\\ 3\end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} 125 \\ 76 \\ 1 \\ 12 \\ 7 \\ 5 \\ 9 \\ 13 \\ -1 \\ 1 \end{array} $	$     \begin{array}{r}       33 \\       11 \\       \overline{} \\       $		$\begin{array}{c} 7.31 \\ 6.79 \\ 17.84 \\ 19.25 \\ 3.07 \\ 9.49 \\ 10.45 \\ 9.93 \\ 6.26 \\ 5.69 \\ 5.02 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 6.08\\ 5.53\\ 16.65\\ 14.88\\ 2.66\\ 8.35\\ 8.45\\ 8.45\\ 8.40\\ 6.26\\ 5.33\\ 4.34\end{array}$	$1.25 \\ 1.26 \\ 1.19 \\ 4.37 \\ 0.41 \\ 1.14 \\ 2.00 \\ 1.53 \\ 0.36 \\ 0.68 \\ $	$\begin{array}{c} 12,735.7\\ 6,970.0\\ 84.1\\ 342.8\\ 1,694.9\\ 526.6\\ 698.3\\ 1,571.7\\ 127.8\\ 281.3\\ 438.2 \end{array}$
San Francisco Bay Area San Francisco Alameda Contra Costa Marin Napa San Mateo Santa Clara Solano Sonoma	173 88 54 8 7 15 115 6	433 155 82 49 7 7 12 98 4 19	415 149 75 48 7 7 12 95 3 19	18 6 7 1 		58 18 6 5 1 	53 16 6 5  -2 16 2 6	4 1  1  1 1 	1 1	$10.17 \\ 25.91 \\ 8.10 \\ 9.23 \\ 3.74 \\ 7.90 \\ 2.62 \\ 9.66 \\ 3.26 \\ 10.30 \\ 10.30 \\ 10.17 \\ 10.$	8.97 23.21 7.55 8.38 3.27 7.90 2.10 8.23 2.17 7.83	$ \begin{array}{r} 1.20\\2.70\\0.55\\0.85\\0.47\\0.\overline{52}\\1.43\\1.09\\2.47\end{array} $	4,829.5 667.7 1,086.6 584.9 213.8 88.6 571.1 1,190.0 184.0 242.8

Balance of State	400	319	288	31	1	81	59	22	 11.27	8.99	2.28	3,547.8	
Sacramento Valley countits Butte Placer Sacramento Shasta Sutter Yolo Yuba	2	74 2 2 44 11 3 3 9	73 2 2 43 11 3 3 9	1		18  13 2 1  - 2	16  11 2 1 -2	2	7.43 1.71 2.22 8.29 14.82 8.69 2.95 24.44	5.98 1.71 2.22 6.40 12.54 6.52 2.95 20.00	1.45  1.89 2.28 2.17 4.44	1,238.2 116.9 90.0 687.4 87.7 46.0 101.7 45.0	
San Joaquin Valley counties Fresno Madera Merced San Joaquin Stanialaus Tulare	110 9 9 15 14	6 9 11 10	142 71 4 9 11 10 10 27	20 16 2   2		44 23 3  4 4 5 5	31 12 2 4 3 5 5		$14.71 \\ 24.60 \\ 13.20 \\ 19.48 \\ 12.82 \\ 4.63 \\ 7.06 \\ 16.37 \\$	11.57 19.46 8.80 19.48 9.40 3.31 4.71 13.96	3.14 5.14 4.40 3.42 1.83 2.35 2.41	1,400.6 447.1 68.2 46.2 117.0 302.0 212.4 207.7	
Other counties Amador El Dorado Humboldt Lake Monoo Monto Monterey Nevada Santa Cruz Siakiyou Trinity Tuolumne	1 5 1 1 1 62 62 1 24 2	83 1 4 1 1 5 1 1 1 9 2 1 1	73 1 4 1 1  45 1 16 2 1 1	10   1 6  		19 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	12 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	7             	11.22 6.62 8.45 0.96 3.92 1.74 13.70 23.27 2.95 16.17 5.73 10.42 7.70	9.13 6.62 6.76 0.96 3.92 13.70 19.14 2.95 12.80 5.73 10.42 3.85	2.09 1.39 1.74 4.13 3.37 3.85	900.0 15.1 59.2 104.4 26.5 7.6 7.3 206.4 33.9 148.4 34.9 9.8 26.0	APPENDIX

8

Note: Estimates of State population from Department of Finance, Financial and Population Research Section publication. Population in area total includes counties from which no person was committed.







# TABLE IV OFFENSE GROUPS MEN AND WOMEN IN INSTITUTION PROGRAM December 31, 1970 through 1975

			М	en	ta sa ta Ta sa ta s				Wo	men		
Offense	1970	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975	1970	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975
	ant an An an A			Numbe	r	an alfa Rogana				. * . *		
Total	2,356	1,668	1,820	1,674	1,762	1,863	278	235	195	223	268	275
No criminal charge	196	57	32	13	3	4	23	10	4	3	1	
Total charged	2,160	1,611	1,788	1,661	1,759	1,859	255	225	191	220	267	275
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemeanor (controlled substances & marijuana)	766 160 171 116	565 143 86 41	639 118 72 56	615 78 57 24	618 76 60 28	639 48 63 32	100 27 9 29	92 28 4 13	73 13 8 9	82 12 4 12	95 12 5 12	112 3 5 21
Crimes against property Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	736 191 20	592 176 8	711 186 6	717 158 12	781 191 5	871 204 6	74 13 3	73 8 7	74 7 7	96 7 7	125 12 6	120 8 6
	•			Percenta	ge							
Total charged	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	. 100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs) Marijuana Misdemeanor (controlled substances & marijuana)	$35.5 \\ 7.4 \\ 7.9 \\ 5.4$	$35.1 \\ 8.9 \\ 5.3 \\ 2.5$	$35.8 \\ 6.6 \\ 4.0 \\ 3.1$	$37.0 \\ 4.7 \\ 3.4 \\ 1.5$	$35.1 \\ 4.3 \\ 3.4 \\ 1.6$	$34.3 \\ 2.6 \\ 3.4 \\ 1.7$	39.2 10.6 3.5 11.4	40.9 12.5 1.7 5.8	38.2 6.8 4.2 4.7	$37.2 \\ 5.5 \\ 1.8 \\ 5.5 \\ 5.5$	35.6 4.5 1.9 4.5	$40.7 \\ 1.1 \\ 1.8 \\ 7.7$
Crimes against property Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	$34.1 \\ 8.8 \\ 0.9$	36.8 10.9 0.5	$39.8 \\ 10.4 \\ 0.3$	43.2 9.5 0.7	44.4 10.9 0.3	46.7 11.0 0.3	29.0 5.1 1.2	$32.4 \\ 3.6 \\ 3.1$	38.7 3.7 3.7	43.6 3.2 3.2	46.8 4.5 2.2	$43.6 \\ 2.9 \\ 2.2$

• Controlled Substances Schedules.

CIVIL COMMITMENT PROGRAM FOR NARCOTIC ADDICTS

#### TABLE V

# OFFENSE GROUPS MEN AND WOMEN IN OUTPATIENT PROGRAM December 31, 1970 through 1975

Offense			N	ſen					Wa	men		
	1970	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975	1970	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975
				Numbe	er							
Total	3,466	4,727	4,801	4,854	4,725	4,472	535	624	703	788	800	829
No criminal charge	356	322	213	131	84	45	54	44	30	10	7	3
Total charged	3,110	4,405	4,588	4,723	4,641	4,427	481	580	673	778	793	826
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs)	1,219 175	1,700 326	1,707 395	1,796 359	1,801	1,727 246	186 26	213 41	243 67	302 72	326 59	319 59
Marijuana Misdemeanor (controlled substances & marijuana)	377 278	411 281	351 203	289 177	217	181	41 64	33	32 61	32 54	25	21
Crimes against property Other felony offenses. Other misdemeanor offenses.	851 182 28	1,354 304 29	1,553 358 21	1,698 380 24	1,780 376 28	1,761 398 19	140 12 12	196 24 9	233 23 14	274 25 19	288 28 21	325 31 21
			10 m	Percenta	ge							
Total charged	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0
CSS* I & II (opiate) CSS* III, IV & V (dangerous drugs)	39.2 5.6	38.6 7.4	37.2 8.6	38.0 7.6	38,8 6.5	39.0 5.6	38.7	36.7	$36.1 \\ 9.9$	38.8 9.3	41.1	38.6 7.2
Marijuana	12.1 8.9	9.3 6.4	7.7 4.4	6.1 3.8	4.7	4.1 2.1	8.5 13.3	5.7 11.0	4.8 9.1	4.1	3.2 5.8	2.5
	27.4	30.7	33.8	36.0	38.4	39.8	29.1	33.8	34.6	35.2	36.3	39.3
Crimes against property Other felony offenses Other misdemeanor offenses	5.9 0.9	6.9 0.7	7.8 0.5	8.0 0.5	8.1 0.6	9.0 0.4	2.5 2.5 2.5	4.1 1.6	3.4 2.1	3.2 2.5	3.5 2.7	3.8 2.5

\* Controlled Substances Schedules.

87

APPENDIX

# CIVIL COMMITMENT PROGRAM FOR NARCOTIC ADDICTS

#### TABLE VIA

# POPULATION AND MOVEMENT RUPERT CRITTENDEN COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTER MEN

	~				
Type of movement	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975
Population, January 1	2	4		6	2
Total received	54	63*	15	22	7
First admission Institution Independent residence Custody County hospital	13	$45 \\ 27 \\ 14 \\ 4 \\$	13 4 7 2	16 6 8 1 1	6 1 5 
Re-admission Independent residence Unauthorized leavo Custody County hospital	14 19 	13 13  	1 1 	6 8  	1
Return to RCCC Center Independent residence Custody Unauthorized leave	5 	5 -4 1	1  ī		
Total released	52	67	9	26	9
To institution To independent residence Unauthorized leave Custody County hospital Died	6	1 31 27 6 1 1			
Population, December 31	4	<u></u> '	6	2	

1971 through 1975

\* Includes one man on temporary community release from the institution.

## APPENDIX

#### TABLE VI A

# POPULATION AND MOVEMENT PARKWAY COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTER

MEN

# 1971 through 1975\*\*

Type of movement	1971	1972	1973	1974
Population, January 1	51	40	47	34
Total received	423*	565	376	124
First admission Institution Direct court referral	294 167 29	315 153 33	221 142	85 45
Independent residence Custody County hospital	70 27	97 30 2	52 25 2	32 7 1
Re-admission Independent residence Unauthorized leave	67	189 158	84 63	23 18
Custody		30 1	20 1	
Return to PCC Center Unauthorized leave Custody County hospital		61 2 53 6	71 22 43 6	16 1 14 1
Total released	434*	558	389	158
To institution To independent residence Unauthorized leave Custody County hospital Discharged Died	28 244 101 49 10 1 1	17 376 72 85 7 	6 206 97 69 10 1	107 26 20 4 1
Population, December 31	40	47	34	<b></b>

\* Includes six men on temporary community release from the institution in 1971. \*\* Paraway Community Correctional Center closed in 1974.

 $\langle \hat{q} \rangle$ 

90

### TABLE VI A POPULATION AND MOVEMENT SACRAMENTO VALLEY COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTER MEN 1975

	Type of movement				1975
Pop. ation, January 1					,
Total received					11
Institution					10 1 9
Re-admission Independent residence				•	1 1
Return to SYCCC					1 - <b>-</b> - 1 - 1
Total released					10
Independent residence Custody			·		9 1
Population, December 31		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			1

#### APPENDIX

# TABLE VI B POPULATION AND MOVEMENT VINEWOOD COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTER WOMEN 1971 through 1975

Type of movement	1971	1972	1973	1974	1975
Population, January 1	11	15	3	6	6
Total received	105*	75*	50	65	41
First admission Institution Direct court referral Independent residence Unauthorized leave Custody	51	53 28 8 15 	36 24 	51 23 27 1	35 24 7 4
Re-admission Independent residence Custody County hospital	10	8 7 1 	5 2 2 1	14 13 1	
Return to VCC Center Unauthorized Isave Custody County hospital		14 2 8 4	9 1 6 2		4 1 2 1
Total released	101*	87	47	65	47
To institution To independent residence Unauthorized leave Custody County hospital Discharged Died	46 22 17 3	15 35 19 14 4 	23 11 8 5 	51 5 8 1 	25 10 10 1 1 -1
Population, December 31	15	3	6	6	

 Includes eight women on temporary community release from the institution in 1971 and includes eight women on temporary community release from the institution and one prior discharged from civil commitment in 1972.

#### TABLE VII A

# SELECTED CHARACTERISTICS COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTERS MEN FIRST ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

			19	074					19	75		
Characteristics	То	tal	From ir	stitution		ependent lence	To	tal	From in	stitution		ependent lence
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Offense	91*  91	100.0	51  51	100.0	40  40	100.0	16  16	100.0	2  2	100.0	14  14	100.0
Controlled substances	37 4	40.6	19 2	37.2 3.9	18	45.0 5.0	6	37.5	1	50.0	5	35.8
Crimes against property Other felony Other misdemeanor	27 23 	29.7 25.3 	16 14 	31.4 27.5	11 9 	27.5 22.5 	9 1 	56.3 6.2	1 	50.0 	8 1 	57.1 7.1
Ethnie Group White White, Mexican descent Black Other	91 34 25 32	100.0 37.4 27.5 35.1	51 20 13 18	100.0 39.2 25.5 35.3	40 14 12 14	100.0 35.0 30.0 35.0	16 10 1 5	100.0 62.5 6.2 31.3	2 2 	100.0 100.0	14 8 1 5	100.0 57.1 7.1 35.8

Age in Years	91	100.0	51	100.0	40	100.0	16	100.0	2	100.0	14	100.0
Under 20 20-24 25-20	16 33	17.6 36.2		$11.\overline{8}$ $41.2$	10 12	25.0 30.0	-1 10	6.2 62.5	- <b>i</b> 1	50.0 50.0	 9	64.3
30-34 35-39 40 and over	19 10 13	20.9 11.0 14.3	10 4 10	19.6 7.8 19.6	9 6 3	22.5 15.0 7.5	3 2 	18.8 12.5			3 2 	21.4 14.3
Median age in years	29.4		29.6		29.1		28.5			-	-	
Status at Last Release From Institution	91	100.0	51	100.0	40	100.0	16	100.0	2	100.0	14	100.0
Original commitment	36	39.6	23	45.1	13	32.5	7	43.8	2	100.0	5	35.8
1st return to finish term	10 3	11.0 3.3	2 3	3.9 5.9		20.0	7	43.8		1		50.0
2nd return to finish term 2nd return with new commitment	19 2	20.9 2.2	13 1	$\substack{25.5\\2.0}$	6 1	15.0 2.5	1	6.2 			1 	7.1
3rd return to finish term 3rd return with new commitment	21 	23.1	9	72.0 72.0	.12	30.0	1	6.2			1	7.1
Time in Institution Prior to Release	91	100.0	51	100.0	40	100.0	16	100.0	2	100.C	14	100.0
6 months or less 7-12 months 13-24 months	2	56.0 41.8 2.2	27 22 2	53.0 43.1 3.9	24 16 	60.0 40.0	7 9 	43.8 56.2	2	100.0	7 7 	50.0 50.0
25 or more months Number of Prior Criminal Commitments Served	91	100.0	51	100.0	40	100.0	16	100.0	2	100.0	14	100.0
None	17	18.7	10	19.6	7	17.5	2	12.5	2	100.0		
Prior jail or juvenile only 1 prison only or 1 prison and jail or juvenile 2 or more prison	63 5 6	69.2 5.5 6.6	35 3 2	68.6 5.9 5.9	28 2 3	70.0 5.0 7.5	12 2 	75.0 12.5		-	12 2 	85.7 14.3 

• Excludes 8 men admitted from custody and 21 men admitted from County Hospital.

APPENDIX

 $\mathbb{Z}^{\mathcal{P}}$ 

# TABLE VII B

# SELECTED CHARACTERISTICS VINEWOOD COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTER WOMEN FIRST ADMITTED 1974 and 1975

			19	74					19	75	1.1.1	
Characteristics	To	tal	From in	stitution		epender.t lence	To	ital	From in	stitution	From ind resid	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Offense	50*		23		27		31**		24		7	
No criminal charge												a daga
Total charged	50	100.0	23	100.0	27	100.0	31	100.0	24	100.0	7	100.0
Controlled substances Misdemeanor parcotics	21 4	42.0 8.0	11	47.9 4,3	10 3	37.1 11.1	21 2	67.7 6.5	17 2	70.9 8.3	4	57.1
Crimes against property Other felony Other misdemeanor	4 18 3	8.0 36.0 6.0	1 9 1	4.3 39.2 4.3	3 9 2	11.1 33.3 7.4	8	25.8	5	20.8	3 	42.9 
Ethnic Group	50	100.0	23	100.0	27	100.0	31	100.0	24	100.0	7	100.0
White	29 3 18 	58.0 6.0 36.0 	15 	65.2 34.8	14 3 10 	51.8 11.1 37.1	17 5 9 	54.9 16.1 29.0 	13 4 7 	54.2 16.7 29.1	4 1 2 	57.1 14.3 28.6
Age in Years	50	100.0	23	100.0	27	100,0	31	100.0	24	100.0	7	100.0

1. yr.

CIVIL COMMITMENT PROGRAM FOR NARCOTIC ADDICTS

Under 20 20-24 25-29	14 26	$\begin{array}{r} 28.0\\ 52.0\end{array}$	- <u>9</u> 10	39.2 43.5	-5 16	18.5 50.3	-5 14	16.1 $45.2$		$\begin{array}{c} 12.\overline{5} \\ 54.2 \end{array}$	- <u>2</u> 1	28.6 14.3
30-34	7 1 2	$\substack{14.0\\2.0\\4.0}$	2 1 1	8.7 4.3 4.3	5 - 1	18.5 3.7	5 7 	16.1 22.6 	5 3 	20.8 12.5		57.1
Median age in years	27.1		26.2		27.6		28.7		28.5			
Status at Last Release From Institution	50	100.0	23	100.0	27	100.0	31	100.0	24	100.0	7	100.0
Original commitment	22	44.0	8	34.8	14	51.9	10	32.3	7	29.1	3	42,8
1st return to finish term 1st return with new commitment	15 	32.0	11 	47.9	5 	18.5 	7 	22.6	 	25.0	1 	14,3
2nd return to finish term 2nd return with new commitment	7	14.0	3 	13.0 	4	14.8	5	16.1 	3	12.5	2	28.6
3rd return to finish term 3rd return with new commitment	5	10.0	1	4.3 	4	14.8	9	29.0	8	33.4	1	14.3
Time in Institution Prior to Release	50	100.0	23	100.0	27	100.0	31	100.0	24	100.0	7	100.0
6 months or less 7-12 months 13-24 months 25 or more months	41 9 	82.0 18.0	15 8 	65.2 34.8	26 1 	96.3 3.7 	20 11 	64.5 35.5	14 10 	58.3 41.7	6 1 	85.7 14.3 
Number of Prior Criminal Commitments Served	50	100.0	23	100.0	27	100.0	31	100.0	24	100.0	7	100.0
None Prior jail or juvenile only 1 prison only or 1 prison and jail or juvenile 2 or more prison	16 33 1 	32.0 66.0 2.0	8 15 	34.8 65.2 	8 18 1 	29.6 66.7 3.7	3 25 3 	9.7 80.6 9.7	21 21 1 	8.3 87.5 4.2 	1 4 2 	14.3 57.1 28.6

APPENDIX

95

• Excludes one woman admitted from custody. •• Excludes four women admitted from custody.

#### TABLE VIII A

# LENGTH OF STAY COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTERS MEN FIRST RELEASED 1974 and 1975

	Total persons released	Length of stay in Center								
Type(s) of admission and release		015 days	16-30 days	31-60 days	61-120 days	121 days and over	Median number of days	Range in days		
		1974	: 4	- -		1 		- - -		
Total	125	50	25	19	19	12	23	1-715		
Admitted from institution or elinic	, 70 ·	24	10	12	13	11	33	2-715		
Released to institution Released to independent residence Released to custody, RAL* or AWOL* Other release	49 20 1	$\overline{12}$ 11 1	-6 4 		11 2 	11 	53 14 	2-715 3-83 10		
Admitted from independent residence	44	19	14	7 '	4		- 19	1-223		
Released to institution Released to independent residence Released to custody, RAL* or AWOL* Other release.	31 12 1	15 3 1	 9 5 	-4 3 			17 	1-223 2-87 11		
Admitted from other	11	.7.	1		2	1		3-126		
Released to institution Released to independent residence Released to custody, RAL* or AWOL* Other release	9	-6 -1	 		- <u>2</u> 	-ī 		3-126 23 6		
1975										
Total	17	12	4		1		10.6	161		
Admitted from institution or clinic	. 2	· 1	1					3-29		
Released to institution Released to independent residence Released to custody, RAL* or AWOL* Other release	-2	-1 	-ī 					3–29 		
Admitted from independent residence	15	11	3		1		10.2	161		
Released to institution Released to independent residence Released 'a custody, RAL* or AWOL* Other	13 2 	 9 2 			-ī -:			1-61 1-7 		

\_\_\_

---

----

--

---

-

----

----

- -

---

---

\_\_\_

---

------

---

---

• RAL-Release at large; AWOL-Absent without leave. Note: Median computed for 15 or more cases.

Admitted from other\_\_\_\_\_

Released to institution\_\_\_\_\_\_ Released to independent residence\_\_\_\_\_ Released to custody, RAL\* or AWOL\*\_\_\_ Other release\_\_\_\_\_

#### APPENDIX

#### TABLE VIII-B

## LENGTH OF STAY VINEWOOD COMMUNITY CORRECTIONAL CENTER WOMEN FIRST RELEASED 1974 and 1975

		Length of stay in Center									
Type(s) of admission and release	Total persons released	0-15 days	16-30 days	31-60 days	61120 days	121 days and over	Median number of days	Range in days			
		197	4		· · ·	· · ·	· · · ·				
Total	52	22	9	10	7	4	22	1-237			
Admitted from institution or clinic	25	9	3	. 6	4.	3	33	2-237			
Released to independent residence Released to custody, RAL* or AWOL* Other release	18 6 1	5 4	2 1	42	4	3	46	2–237 3–57 24			
Admitted from independent residence	26	12	6	4	3	1	18	1-207			
Released to independent residence Released to custody, RAL* or AWOL* Other release	23 3 	10 2	6 	3 1 	3 	1	20 	1-207 7-44			
Admitted from other	1	1	: 	<sup>:</sup>				11			
Released to independent residence Released to custody, RAL* or AWOL* Other release	1	1 	 		2 	 		11			
		197.	5		· · · · · · ·						
Total	37	23	7	2	3	2	12.1	1-165			
Admitted from institution or clinic	23	15	4	1	3		11.5	2-118			

 $\frac{2}{2}$ 

---

3

-3

<del>...</del>

---

----

---

6 9

---

4

4

--

---

4

 $^{2}_{2}$ 

11

12

---

10

Ğ

3

ĩ

4

 $\frac{2}{2}$ 

يونية. مورد ا

م. al-

2

1

ĩĩ

-

--

---

--

\_\_\_

---

--

\_\_\_

÷...

3-99 2-118

1--165

1-165

16-22 129

4-14

4-8 4-14

---

---

2 1

---

-----

---

---

\*\*

---

--

--

.....

1

--

----

1

1

---

---

- -

-----

-----

---

Released to independent residence..... Released to custody, RAL\* or AWOL\*. Other release...... -----------\* RAL-Release at large; AWOL-Absent without leave,

Note; Median computed for 15 or more cases.

Released to independent residence\_\_\_\_\_ Released to custody, RAL\* or AWOL\*\_\_

Admitted from independent residenco....

Released to independent residence\_\_\_\_\_ Released to custody, RAL\* or AWOL\*\_\_ Other release\_\_\_\_\_

Other release

Admitted from other\_\_\_\_\_

